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COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2020
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity
The County of Riverside (the County) is a legal subdivision of the State of California charged with general
governmental powers. The County’s powers are exercised through a five member Board of Supervisors (the Board),
which, as the governing body of the County, is responsible for the legislative and executive control of the County.
Services provided by the County include general government, public protection, public ways and facilities, health and
sanitation, public assistance, education, and recreation and cultural services.
Component Units
While each of these component units is legally separate from the County, the County is financially accountable for
these entities. Financial accountability is primarily demonstrated by the County’s Board acting as, or appointing, the
governing board for each of the component units and its ability to impose its will. Because of their relationship with
the County and the nature of their operations, component units are, in substance, part of the County’s operations and,
accordingly, the activities of these component units are combined, or blended, with the activities of the County for
purposes of reporting in the accompanying basic financial statements. The discretely presented component units are
reported in separate columns in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate
from the County.
In conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the financial statements
of twelve component units have been included and combined with financial data of the County. Eleven component
units have an integral relationship with and serve as an extension of the County. Using the criteria of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity, management has determined
that each entity is presented as a blended component unit due to the composition of each governing board and the
control of the day-to-day activities through the budget process. One component unit is presented discretely. Each
blended and discretely presented component unit has a June 30 fiscal year-end.
Blended Component Units
Housing Authority of the County of Riverside (Housing Authority). The Board is the governing body of the Housing
Authority. Among its duties, it approves the Housing Authority’s budget, rates and charges for the use of facilities,
and appoints the management. The County is responsible for all financial debt. The Housing Authority is reported as
a proprietary fund type.
Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (Flood Control). The Board is the governing body
of Flood Control. Among its duties, it approves Flood Control’s budget, tax rates, contracts, and appoints the
management. The County is responsible for all financial debt. Flood Control is reported as both governmental and
proprietary fund types.
Riverside County Regional Park and Open-Space District (Park District). The Board is the governing board of the
Park District. Among its duties, it approves the Park District’s budget, contracts, fees and charges for park use, and
appoints the management. The County is responsible for all financial debt and management has operational
responsibility. The Park District is reported as both governmental and fiduciary fund types.
County of Riverside Asset Leasing Corporation (CORAL). The Board appoints the governing board of CORAL and
CORAL provides services entirely to the County through the purchase of land and construction of facilities, which
are then leased back to the County. The County is responsible for all financial debt, and management has operational
responsibility. CORAL is reported as a governmental fund type.
Riverside County Service Areas (CSAs). The Board is the governing body of the CSAs. Among its duties, it approves
the CSAs’ budgets, approves parcel fees, and appoints the management. The County is responsible for all financial
debt and management has operational responsibility. The CSAs are reported as either governmental or proprietary
fund types.
Riverside County Public Financing Authority (Public Financing Authority). The Board is the governing body of the
Public Financing Authority. The Public Financing Authority was formed for the purpose of assisting in financing
public improvements of the County, the Riverside County Redevelopment Successor Agency and other local agencies.
The County is responsible for all financial debt and management has operational responsibility. The Public Financing
Authority is reported as a governmental fund type.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Blended Component Units (Continued) 
Riverside County Infrastructure Financing Authority (IFA). The Board is the governing body of the IFA and the
County is responsible for all its financial debt. The IFA is a joint exercise of powers authority, duly organized and
existing under and pursuant to that certain Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated September 15, 2015, by and
between the County and the Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District. The IFA is authorized
and empowered to issue bonds for the purpose of financing and refinancing public capital improvements of the County.
The IFA is reported as a governmental fund type.
County of Riverside District Court Financing Corporation (District Corporation). The Board is the governing body
of the District Corporation. The District Corporation assists the County by providing for the acquisition, construction
and renovation of U.S. District Court facilities. The County is responsible for all financial debt, and management has
operational responsibility. The District Corporation is reported as a governmental fund type.
In-home Support Services Public Authority (IHSS PA). The Board is the governing body of the IHSS PA. The IHSS
PA acts as the employer of record for purposes of collective bargaining for Riverside In-home Support Services
providers and performs other IHSS PA functions as required and retained by the County. Management has operational
responsibility. The IHSS PA is reported as a governmental fund type.
Perris Valley Cemetery District (the District). The Board is the governing body of the District. The District is a public
cemetery district operating under the provisions of the Health and Safety Code of the State of California. The District
was created in July 1927 for the purpose of operating a public cemetery for the residents of Perris Valley. Management
has operational responsibility. The District is reported as a governmental fund type.
Inland Empire Tobacco Securitization Authority (the Authority). The Board appoints two of the three members of
the governing board of the Authority. The San Bernardino County Board of Supervisors appoints the third member.
The Authority was created by a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (the Agreement) effective as of July 18, 2007,
between Riverside County and San Bernardino County. The Authority was created for the purpose of securitizing the
payments to be received by the County from the nation-wide Tobacco Settlement Agreement (the Payments) for such
purposes, but not limited to, issuance, sale, execution and delivery of bonds secured by those Payments or the lending
of money based on thereof, or to securitize, sell, purchase or otherwise dispose of some or all of such Payments of the
County. The Authority is a blended component unit of the County because the Authority is providing services solely
to the County and the County’s Board has the ability to impose its will by removing the Authority’s governing board
at will. The County is responsible for all financial debt. The Authority is reported as a governmental fund type.
Discretely Presented Component Units
Riverside County Children and Families Commission (the Commission). The County Board established First 5
Riverside, also known as Riverside County Children and Families Commission, in 1999 under the provisions of the
California Children and Families Act of 1998. The Commission was formed to develop, adopt, promote, and
implement early childhood development programs.
A governing board of nine members, that administers the Commission, is appointed by the County Board. The
Commission includes one member of the County Board. The Commission is a component unit of the County because
the County’s Board has the ability to remove some of the Commission’s governing board at will. It is discretely
presented because its governing board is not substantially the same as the County’s governing board and it does not
provide services entirely or exclusively to the County.
Presentation of Financial Information Related to County Fiduciary Responsibilities
The basic financial statements also include an Investment Trust fund to account for cash and investments held by the
County Treasurer for numerous self-governed school and special districts. The financial reporting for these
governmental entities, which are independent of the County, is limited to the total amount of cash and investments
and other assets. School and special district boards that are separately elected and that are independent of the County
Board, administer activities of the school districts and special districts. The County Auditor-Controller makes
disbursements upon the request of the responsible self-governed special district officers. The Board has no effective
authority to govern, manage, approve budgets, assume financial accountability, establish revenue limits, or appropriate
surplus funds available in these entities. Therefore, these entities are fiscally independent of the County. Twenty-
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Presentation of Financial Information Related to County Fiduciary Responsibilities (Continued)
eight cities and numerous self-governed special districts provide services to the residents of the County. The
operations of these entities have been excluded from the basic financial statements since each entity conducts its own
day-to-day operations and is controlled by its own governing board.
Basis of Presentation
Government-wide Financial Statements
The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the primary government (the
County) and its component units. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government,
excluding fiduciary activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of
the County, and between the County and its discretely presented component units. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities
that rely, to a significant extent, on fees charged to external parties.
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment of
the business-type activities of the County and for each function of the County’s governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable
to a particular function. Expenses by function have been adjusted for any internal service profit/loss existing at fiscal
year-end. In addition, 41.2%, or $31.2 million, of the County’s $74.0 million indirect costs, allocated through the
Countywide Cost Allocation Program (COWCAP), have been included in the expenses of those functions, which can
obtain reimbursement through State and Federal Programs or other charges. Program revenues include (1) charges
paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented instead as general revenues.
Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds, including fiduciary funds and blended
component units. Separate statements for each fund category – governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary – are
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed
in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are separately aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Proprietary fund operating
revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the
fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values.
Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary
activities. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating expenses.
The County reports the following major governmental funds:
General fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It is used to account for all revenues and expenditures necessary
to carry out the basic governmental activities of the County that are not accounted for through other funds. For the
County, the general fund includes such activities as general government, public protection, health and sanitation,
public assistance, education, and recreation and cultural services.
Transportation fund accounts for revenue consisting primarily of the County’s share of highway user taxes which are
supplemented by Federal funds, vehicle code fines, and fees and reimbursements for engineering services provided.
The fund was established to provide for maintenance and construction of roadways and for specialized engineering
services to other governmental units and the public.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Flood Control special revenue fund accounts for revenues and expenditures related to providing flood control in
various geographical zones. The fund is primarily financed by ad valorem property taxes, developer fees, and local
cooperative agreements.
CARES Act Coronavirus Relief fund accounts for revenues and expenditures related to the federal funding from the
Coronavirus Relief Fund in response to Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.
Teeter debt service fund accounts for revenue from the collection of delinquent taxes, which is then used to pay
principal of the debt issued to finance the Teeter plan.
Pension obligation debt service fund accounts for revenues and expenditures related to the funding of unfunded
pension liability through the issuance of pension obligation bonds.
The County reports the following major enterprise funds:
Riverside University Health Systems - Medical Center (RUHS-MC) accounts for the maintenance of physical plant
facilities and providing quality care to all patients in accordance with accreditation standards; the bylaws, rules and
regulations of the medical staff; and the RUHS-MC. Revenue for this fund is primarily from charges for services, and
secondarily from the County’s general fund.
Waste Resources department (Waste Resources) accounts for solid waste revenues, expenses, and the allocation of net
income for solid waste projects initiated for the public’s benefit. The fund facilitates management and accounting of
solid waste projects. Waste Resources prepares and maintains the County’s solid waste management plan, provides
environmental monitoring in accordance with state and federal mandates, and administers landfill closure and
acquisition.
Housing Authority was established to provide affordable, decent, safe housing opportunities to low and moderate
income families including elderly and handicapped persons, while supporting programs to foster economic selfsufficiency.
The County reports the following additional fund types:
Internal service funds account for the County’s records management and archives, fleet services, central mail services,
supply services, purchasing, Riverside County Information Technology (RCIT) enterprise solutions division project
(accounting, purchasing, and human resources information system), risk management, temporary assistance pool,
custodial services, maintenance services, real estate, and flood control equipment on a cost-reimbursement basis.
Internal service funds are presented in summary form as part of the proprietary fund financial statements. In the
government-wide financial statements, the changes in net position at the end of the fiscal year, as presented in the
statement of activities, were allocated to the functions of both the governmental and business-type activities, to reflect
the entire activity for the year. Since the predominant users of the internal services are the County’s governmental
activities, the asset and liability balances of the internal service funds are consolidated into the governmental activities
column at the government-wide level.
Pension trust fund accounts for resources held in trust for the members and beneficiaries of a defined benefit pension
plan for County employees not eligible for social security or California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS) participation. The County’s pension trust fund uses the economic resources measurement focus and
accrual basis of accounting.
Investment trust fund accounts for the external portion of the County Treasurer’s investment pool held in trust, as
defined by GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. External investment pool participants include entities
legally separate from the County, such as school and special districts governed by local boards, regional boards, and
authorities. This fund accounts for assets, primarily cash and investments, held or invested by the County Treasurer
and the related County liability to disburse these monies on demand to the related external entities. The County’s
investment trust fund uses the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Private-purpose trust fundaccounts for resources held and administered by the County in a fiduciary capacity for
individuals, private organizations, or other governments based on trust arrangements. The fund accounts for the
resources held and administered by the County in a fiduciary capacity for the Redevelopment Successor Agency. The
County’s private purpose trust fund uses the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.
Custodial funds account for assets held by the County in a custodial capacity. The funds reported as custodial funds
are not required to be reported in pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds or investment trust funds, or privatepurpose trust funds. The external portion of investment pools that are not held in trust, as defined by GASB Statement
No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, are reported in a separate external investment pool column, under the custodial fund
classification. These funds account for the receipt, temporary investment, and remittance to individuals, private
organizations, or other governments and include property taxes and special assessments collected on behalf of cities,
special districts, and other taxing agencies. The County’s custodial funds use the economic resources measurement
focus and accrual basis of accounting.
The government-wide, proprietary, pension trust, investment trust, and private-purpose trust fund financial statements
are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related
cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property and sales taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations.
On an accrual basis of accounting, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are
levied. Revenues from sales taxes are recognized when the underlying transactions occur. Revenues from grants,
entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligible requirements have been satisfied.
Governmental fund type financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues and other governmental fund type financial
resources (e.g., bond issuance proceeds) are recognized when they become both measurable and available. Revenues
are considered available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities
of the current period. Property and sales taxes are considered available for the year levied and are accrued when
received within sixty days after fiscal year-end. Revenue received from expenditure driven (cost-reimbursement)
grants, as defined by GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Transactions,
is considered available and accrued if expected to be received within twelve months after fiscal year-end. All other
revenue streams are considered available and accrued if they are expected to be received within ninety days after the
fiscal year-end. Since revenue from these sources are not available to meet current period liabilities, these sources
are financed through proceeds received from Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRANs) which are outstanding
for a twelve month period. General capital assets acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental fund
financial statements. Proceeds of general long-term debt and capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
Reconciliations are presented to explain the adjustments necessary to reconcile the governmental fund financial
statements to the government-wide financial statements. These reconciliations are presented because governmental
fund financial statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the governmentwide financial statements for governmental activities.
Cash and Investments
The County pools cash resources of its various funds to facilitate the management of cash. Cash applicable to a
particular fund is readily identifiable. The balance of the pooled cash account is available to meet current operating
requirements. Cash in excess of current requirements is invested in various interest-bearing securities and disclosed
as part of the County’s pooled investments.
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the County considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted
cash and investments) with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.
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Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Securities, including U.S. Treasury and Agency securities, are carried at fair value/cost based on current market prices
on a monthly basis. Repurchase agreements are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices, except for
repurchase agreements maturing within ninety days of June 30, 2020, which are carried at cost. Bond anticipation
notes are carried at fair value/cost. Commercial paper is carried at amortized cost/cost. Investments in bankers’
acceptances and nonparticipating guaranteed investment contracts are carried at cost. Participating guaranteed
investment contracts are carried at fair value based on net realizable value. Mutual funds are carried at fair value
based on the funds’ share price. Local Agency Obligations are carried at cost based on the value of each participating
dollar.
The fair value of a participant’s position in the pool is not the same as the value of the pooled shares. The method
used to determine the value of participants’ equity withdrawn is based on the book value, amortized cost, and accrued
interest of the participants’ percentage participation at the date of such withdrawal.
State law requires that the County Treasurer hold all operating monies of the County, school districts, and certain
special districts. Collectively, these mandatory deposits constituted approximately 78.9% of the funds on deposit in
the County treasury. In addition, the Auditor-Controller determined districts and agencies constituting approximately
21.1% of the total funds on deposit in the County treasury represented discretionary deposits.
Receivables
The RUHS-MC accounts receivable are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by
contractual allowances and the estimated uncollectible amounts. The estimated allowance for uncollectibles and
allowance for contractuals are $122.3 million and $217.1 million, respectively. The RUHS-MC has contracted with a
Medi-Cal managed care plan to provide services to patients enrolled with Medicare and Medi-Cal programs. The
RUHS-MC receives a fixed monthly premium payment for each patient enrolled. Revenue under this agreement is
recognized in the period in which the RUHS-MC is required to provide services.
Property Taxes
All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority from the State Constitution and various legislative
provisions contained in the Government Code and the Revenue and Taxation Code. Property is assessed by the County
Assessor and State Board of Equalization at 100.0% of full cash or market value (with some exceptions) pursuant to
Article XIIIA of the California State Constitution and statutory provisions. The total for fiscal year 2019-20 gross
assessed valuation (for tax purposes) of the County was $308.94 billion.
The property tax levy to support general operations of the various local government jurisdictions is limited to 1.0% of
the full cash value of taxable property and distributed in accordance with statutory formulas. Amounts needed to
finance the annual requirements of voter-approved debt (approved by the electorate prior to June 20, 1978) are
excluded from this limitation and are calculated and levied each fiscal year. The rates are formally adopted by either
the Board or the city councils and, in some instances, the governing board of a special district.
The County is divided into tax rate areas, which are unique combinations of various jurisdictions servicing a specific
geographic area. The rates levied within each tax rate area vary only in relation to levies assessed as a result of voterapproved indebtedness.
Property taxes are levied on both real and personal property and are recorded as receivables at the date of levy. Secured
property taxes are levied on or before the first business day of September of each year. These taxes become a lien on
real property on January 1 proceeding the fiscal year for which taxes are levied. Tax payments can be made in two
equal installments; the first is due November 1 and is delinquent with penalties after December 10; the second is due
February 1 and is delinquent with penalties after April 10. Secured property taxes that are delinquent and unpaid as
of June 30 are declared to be tax defaulted and are subject to redemption penalties, costs, and interest when paid. If
the delinquent taxes are not paid at the end of five years, the property is sold at public auction and the proceeds are
used to pay the delinquent amounts due and any excess is remitted, if claimed, to the taxpayer.
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Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Supplemental tax liens are created when there is a change in ownership of property or upon completion of new
construction. Tax bills for these new tax liens are issued throughout the fiscal year and contain various payments and
delinquent dates but are generally due within one year. If the new tax liens are lower, the taxpayer receives a tax
refund rather than a tax bill.
Unsecured personal property taxes are not a lien against real property. These taxes are due on January 1, and become
delinquent, if unpaid, on August 31. During fiscal year 1993-94, the County authorized an alternative property tax
distribution method referred to as the “Teeter plan.” This method allows for a 100.0% distribution of the current
secured property tax levy to entities electing the alternative method, as compared to the previous method where only
the current levy less and delinquent taxes was distributed. This results in the general fund receiving distributions of
approximately 50.0-55.0% in December, 40.0-45.0% in April and the remaining balance in the fall of each year.
The Teeter plan also provides that all of the payments of redemption penalties and interest on delinquent secured
property taxes of participating agencies flow to a Tax Loss Reserve Fund (TLRF). Any amounts on deposit in the
TLRF greater than 1.0% of the tax levy for participating entities may flow to the County general fund. For fiscal year
2019-20, $18.4 million was transferred from the TLRF to the general fund.
Prepaid Items and Inventories
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items.
The prepaid items recorded in the governmental funds do not reflect current appropriable resources and thus, an
equivalent portion of fund balance is nonspendable. The consumption method is used to account for prepaid items.
Under the consumption method, prepaid items are recorded as expenditures during the period benefited by the
prepayment.
Inventories, which consist of materials and supplies held for consumption, are valued at cost (on a first-in, first-out
basis). Inventories for all governmental funds are valued at average cost. The consumption method is used to account
for inventories. Under the consumption method of accounting, inventories are recorded as expenditures when
consumed rather than when purchased. Material amounts of inventory are reported as assets of the respective fund.
Reported inventories of governmental funds are equally offset by a nonspendable fund balance reservation to indicate
that portion of fund balance not available for future appropriation.
Capital Assets
Capital assets (including infrastructure) are recorded at historical cost or at estimated historical cost if actual historical
cost is not available. Capital assets received by the County through a Service Concession Arrangement and donated
capital assets, including works of art and historical treasures, are recorded at the estimated acquisition value at the
date of donation. Capital assets include public domain (infrastructure) general capital assets consisting of certain
improvements including roads, bridges, traffic signals, park trails and improvements, flood control channels, storm
drains, dams, and basins. The capitalization threshold for equipment is $5.0 thousand; buildings, land and land
improvements is $5.0 thousand; and infrastructure and intangibles is $150.0 thousand. Betterments result in more
productive, efficient, or long-lived assets. Significant betterments are considered capital assets when they result in an
improvement of $5.0 thousand or more.
Capital assets used in operations are depreciated or amortized (assets under capital leases) using the straight-line
method over the lesser of the capital lease period or their estimated useful lives in the government-wide financial
statements and proprietary funds. The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Infrastructure
Flood channels
Flood storm drains
Flood dams and basins
Roads
Traffic signals
Parks trails and improvements
Bridges

99 years
65 years
99 years
20 years
10 years
20 years
50 years
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Buildings
Improvements
Equipment

25-50 years
10-20 years
2-20 years
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Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations when incurred. Betterments and major improvements, which
significantly increase values, change capacities, or extend useful lives, are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of
capital assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any
resulting gain or loss is included in the changes in financial position.
Leases
The County leases various assets under both operating and capital lease agreements. For governmental funds, assets
under capital leases and the related lease obligations are reported in the government-wide financial statements. For
proprietary funds, the assets and related lease obligations are recorded in the appropriate enterprise or internal service
fund and the government-wide financial statements.
Restricted Assets
The County maintains various restricted asset accounts as a result of debt agreements and certain state statutes. The
agreements authorizing the issuance of CORAL and Housing Authority obligations include certain covenants
pertaining to the disposition of bond proceeds for construction, acquisition, and bond redemption purposes. Waste
Resources has restricted assets to meet requirements of state and federal laws and regulations to finance closure and
post-closure maintenance activities at landfill sites. The general fund has restricted assets for program money where
use is legally or contractually restricted.
Employee Compensated Absences
County policy permits employees in some bargaining units to accumulate earned, but unused vacation, holiday, and
sick pay benefits. Vacation and holiday pay are accrued when incurred. For other bargaining units, annual leave is
earned and accrued, but not vacation or sick leave. Proprietary funds report accrued vacation and holiday pay as a
liability of the individual fund while governmental funds record amounts that are due and payable at year-end as a
liability of the fund and amounts due in the future as a liability in the government-wide financial statements. At
June 30, 2020, the amount of accrued vacation, holiday pay, and sick leave reported in the government-wide statement
of net position was $280.3 million.
The County allows unlimited accumulation of sick leave. Upon service retirement, disability retirement, or death of
an employee or officer, and subject to the provisions of any applicable agreement between the employing agency and
CalPERS, unused accumulated sick leave for most employees with at least 5 but less than 15 years of service shall be
credited at the rate of 50.0% of current salary value thereof provided, however, that the total payment shall not exceed
a sum equal to 960 hours of full pay.
Unused accumulated sick leave for employees with more than 15 or more years of service shall be credited at the rate
of the current salary value provided, however, that the total payment shall not exceed a sum equal to 960 hours of full
pay. In addition, the employee may also elect to place the payable amount of sick leave into a VEBA (Voluntary
Employee Beneficiary Association) account, which may be used for future health care costs.
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 63 and GASB Statement No. 65, the County recognizes deferred outflows of
resources and inflows of resources. The deferred outflow of resources is defined as a consumption of net position or
fund balance by the government that is applicable to the future reporting period. A deferred inflow of resources is
defined as an acquisition of net position or fund balance by the government that is applicable to a future reporting
period. Refer to Note 15 for a detailed listing of the deferred inflows and outflows of resources the County has
recognized.
Long-term Debt
The County reports long-term debt of governmental funds in the government-wide statement of net position. Certain
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other governmental fund obligations not expected to be financed with current available financial resources are also
reported in the government-wide statement of net position. Long-term debt and other obligations financed by
proprietary funds are reported as liabilities in the appropriate proprietary fund and the government-wide statement of
net position.
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other longterm obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts, bond issuance costs, and deferred losses
on refundings are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount, and deferred losses on refundings.
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance
costs, during the current period. Issuance costs are reported as debt service expenditures whether or not withheld from
the actual debt proceeds received.
Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position has been determined on the
same basis as it is reported by the CalPERS Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds
of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
are reported at fair value.
Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Care Costs
Waste Resources provides for closure and post-closure care costs over the life of the operating landfills as the
permitted airspace of the landfill is used. Accordingly, the entire closure and post-closure care cost is recognized as
expense by the time the landfills are completely filled. Waste Resources also recognizes as expense closure and postclosure care costs for inactive landfills that have been closed under state and federal regulations.
Waste Resources, under state and federal regulations, may be required to perform corrective action for contaminate
releases at any of its active or inactive landfills. Waste Resources provides for remediation costs for landfills upon
notification from the local water quality board that a specific landfill is considered to be in the evaluation monitoring
phase. Upon notification, Waste Resources provides for these costs based on the most recent cost study information
available.
Interfund Transactions
Interfund transactions are reflected as loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are reported as
receivables and payables, as appropriate. These transactions are subject to elimination upon consolidation and are
referred to as either “due to/due from other funds” (the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/advances
from other funds” (the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and the business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
“internal balances.” Advances between funds, as reported in the governmental fund financial statements, are offset
by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are neither available for
appropriation nor available as financial resources.
Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses.
Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related
cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or
proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide presentation.
Net Position
The government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net position presentation.
Net position is categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted net position, or unrestricted net position.

57

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Net Investment in Capital Assets – This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure, into one component
of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this category.
Restricted Net Position – This category presents net position with external restrictions imposed on its use by creditors,
grantors, contributors, laws and regulations of other governments, or restrictions imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or legislation.
Unrestricted Net Position – This category represents net position of the County, not restricted for any project or other
purpose.
Fund Balance
In the fund financial statements, fund balance may be categorized as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned,
and unassigned. All of the County’s governmental fund balances will be comprised of the following categories:
x
x
x

x

x

Nonspendable fund balance – amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or
they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
Restricted fund balance – amounts that are constrained to being used for a specific purpose by external parties
such as creditors, grantors, laws, or regulations.
Committed fund balance – amounts that are committed can only be used for specific purposes determined by
formal action from the Board, the County’s highest level of decision-making authority. Commitments may
be changed or lifted only by the County’s Board taking the same formal action that imposed the constraint
originally.
Assigned fund balance – amounts that have been set aside and are intended to be used for a specific purpose
but are neither restricted nor committed. The Board delegates the County Executive Officer or an Executive
Officer designee for the establishment of assignments within the general fund. Assigned amounts cannot
cause a deficit in unassigned fund balance.
Unassigned fund balance – funds that are not reported in any other category and are available for any purpose
within the general fund.

Fund Balance Policy
On September 13, 2011, the Board approved Policy B-30, Governmental fund balance policy, to ensure fund balance
is accurately classified and reported on the annual financial statements per GASB Statement No. 54. This policy
applies to governmental fund types which include the general fund, special revenue funds, capital projects funds, debt
service funds, and permanent funds.
The purpose of this policy is to establish the guidelines for:
x The use of reserves with a restricted purpose versus an unrestricted purpose when both are available for
expenditures.
x The establishment of stabilization arrangements for governmental funds.
x The minimum fund balance allowable for governmental funds.
The Board establishes, modifies or rescinds fund balance commitments and assignments by passage of an ordinance
or resolution (ordinances and resolutions are considered of equal authority with respect to fund balance). This is done
through adoption of the budget and subsequent budget amendments that occur throughout the year.
Spending Prioritization for Fund Categories
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned, or
unassigned) amounts are available, it shall be the policy of the Board to consider restricted amounts to be reduced
first. When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used, it shall be the policy of the Board that committed amounts would be reduced first,
followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts.
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Minimum Fund Balance Policy for Governmental Funds

Establishing guidelines for minimum fund balance for governmental funds is essential to ensuring a prudent level of
fund balance is maintained for unanticipated expenditures, delays in revenue receipt, or revenue shortfalls.
The County shall commit a portion of the general fund for disaster relief. The use of these funds will be restricted to one-time
or short-term expenditures that are the result of a natural disaster or act of terrorism. The funds restricted for this purpose
shall be at least 2.0% of discretionary revenue or $15.0 million, whichever is greater.
No formal action is required to remove an assignment. Assignments within the general fund must be established by
the County Executive Officer or an Executive Officer designee.

Special revenue fund balances shall be kept at the higher of the minimum level dictated by the funding source or an
amount that does not fall below zero. In the event that the fund balance drops below the established minimum levels,
the department with primary responsibility for expending the special revenue will develop a plan to replenish the
balance to established minimum levels within 2 years and submit the plan to the Board for approval.
The County shall maintain a minimum unassigned fund balance in its general fund of at least 25.0% of the fiscal year's
estimated discretionary revenue. A significant portion of the minimum unassigned fund balance may be used for onetime or short-term expenditures caused by an economic crisis and should be designated within an "Economic
Uncertainty" account. Use of these stabilization funds should be as the last resort in balancing the County budget. The
general fund unassigned fund balance of $258.0 million is 30.8% of discretionary revenue.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
Current Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84
In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this statement is to improve
guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how
those activities should be reported. GASB Statement No. 84 is effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2019.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 95
In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance.
The primary objective of this statement is to provide temporary relief to governments and other stakeholders in light
of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished by postponing the effective dates of certain provisions in
Statements and Implementation Guides that first became effective or are scheduled to become effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and later.
Future Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87
In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this statement is to better meet the information
needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This
statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets
and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as deferred inflows of
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Future Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements (Continued)
resources or deferred outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single
model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an
underlying asset. Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use
lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. GASB Statement No.
87 is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The County has elected not to early implement this
statement.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 89
In June 2018, GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period
The objectives of this statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital assets
and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the
end of a construction period. GASB Statement No. 89 is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2020. The County has elected not to early implement this statement.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 90
In August 2018, GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests—an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and
No. 61. The primary objectives of this statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a
government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial
statement information for certain component units. GASB Statement No. 90 is effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2019.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 91
In May 2019, GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of this statement are to
provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated
with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related
note disclosures. GASB Statement No. 91 is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021. The
County has elected not to early implement this statement.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 92
In January 2020, GASB Statement 92Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this statement are to enhance comparability
in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice
issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. GASB Statement
No. 92 is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The County has elected not to early implement
this statement.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 93
In March 2020, GASB Statement 93Replacement of Interbank Offered RatesSome governments have entered into
agreements in which variable payments made or received depend on an interbank offered rate (IBOR)—most notably,
the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). As a result of global reference rate reform, LIBOR is expected to cease
to exist in its current form at the end of 2021, prompting governments to amend or replace financial instruments for
the purpose of replacing LIBOR with other reference rates, by either changing the reference rate or adding or changing
fallback provisions related to the reference rate. GASB Statement No. 93 is effective for reporting periods beginning
after June 15, 2021. The County has elected not to early implement this statement.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 94
In March 2020, GASB Statement 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements. The primary objective of this statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related
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to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). As used in this statement, a PPP is an
arrangement in which a government (the transferor) contracts with an operator (a governmental or nongovernmental
entity) to provide public services by conveying control of the right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as
infrastructure or other capital asset (the underlying PPP asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like
transaction. Some PPPs meet the definition of a service concession arrangement (SCA), which the Board defines in
this statement as a PPP in which (1) the operator collects and is compensated by fees from third parties; (2) the
transferor determines or has the ability to modify or approve which services the operator is required to provide, to
whom the operator is required to provide the services, and the prices or rates that can be charged for the services; and
(3) the transferor is entitled to significant residual interest in the service utility of the underlying PPP asset at the end
of the arrangement. GASB Statement No. 94 is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022. The
County has elected not to early implement this statement.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 96
In May 2020, GASB Statement 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. This statement
provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information technology
arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). GASB Statement No. 96 is effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2022. The County has elected not to early implement this statement.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 97
In May 2020, GASB Statement 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and
No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. The primary objectives of this statement are to (1) increase
consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a
potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a
governing board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined
contribution pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit
plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary
fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and
financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that
meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans. GASB Statement No. 97 for
paragraphs 6-9 is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. All other requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The County has elected not to early
implement this statement.
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Budgetary Data
On or before October 2 of each fiscal year, after conducting public hearings concerning the proposed budget, the
County Board adopts a budget in accordance with the provisions of Sections 29000-29144 and 30200 of the
Government Code of the State of California (the Government Code), commonly known as the County Budget Act,
and Board Resolution No. 90-338. Annual budgets are adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Budgeted governmental
funds consist of the general fund, major funds, and some nonmajor funds (all special revenue funds, certain debt
service funds, and certain capital projects funds). Annual budgets are not adopted for the following funds: CORAL,
District Court Financing Corporation, the CORAL Capital Projects Fund, Redevelopment Agency (RDA) Housing
Successor Agency, Public Financing Authority, Infrastructure Financing Authority and the Perris Valley Cemetery
Permanent Fund.
As adopted by the Board, expenditures are controlled by the County at the budgetary unit level, which is the
organization level, for each appropriation (object) class. The appropriation classes are salaries and benefits, services
and supplies, other charges, capital assets, transfers out, and intrafund transfers. The separately prepared Expenditure
by Appropriation – Budget and Actual report, showing budgetary comparisons at the object level of control, is
available in the Auditor-Controller’s Office.
Each year the original budget, as published in a separate report titled the “Adopted Budget,” is adjusted to reflect
increases or decreases in revenues and changes in fund balance. These changes are offset by an equal change in
available appropriations. The County Executive Officer is authorized by the Board to transfer appropriations between
appropriation classes within the same budgetary unit. Transfers of appropriations between budgetary units require
approval of the Board (legal level of control). Any deficiency of budgeted revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses is financed by beginning available fund balances as provided for in the County
Budget Act. All annual appropriations lapse at year-end.
Budgetary comparison statements are prepared for the general fund, special revenue funds, certain debt service funds,
and certain capital projects funds. The budgetary comparison statements are a part of the basic financial statements.
Each budgetary comparison statement provides three separate types of information: (1) the original adopted budget;
(2) the final budget, which included legally authorized changes regardless of when they occurred; and (3) the actual
amount of inflows and outflows in the budget-to-actual comparison.
Individual Fund Deficits
For the year ended June 30, 2020, Enterprise funds (EF) and Internal Service Funds (ISF) individual Fund Deficits
are as follows (In thousands):
Proprietary Funds:
EF - Riverside University Health Systems - Medical Center

$ 240,150

EF - Flood Control

$

1,495

EF - Riverside University Health Systems - Community Health Centers

$

29,760

ISF - Information Services

$

34,623

ISF - Central Mail

$

175

ISF - Supply

$

130

ISF - Risk Management

$

1,223

ISF - EDA Facilities Management

$

28,867

The primary reason for the fund deficits in all funds listed is due to the net pension liability and net OPEB liability
related to GASB Statement No. 68 and GASB Statement No. 75.
Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations
For the year ended June 30, 2020, expenditures exceeded appropriations in capital outlay by $24.4 million in the
general fund. This excess of expenditures resulted from the acquisition of $24.4 million of capital leases.
Accordingly, this is being funded by other financing sources-capital leases.
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The County’s beginning net position or fund balance has been restated to reflect the cumulative effect of prior year
adjustments. A summary of the restatements as of June 30, 2020 is as follows (In thousands):
Government-wide:
Primary Government
Governmental
Business-type
Activities
Activities

Description
Government-wide net position as of June 30, 2019,
as previously reported
Government-wide financial statements:
Prior period adjustments:
Capital assets adjustment (1)
Fund financial statements:
Prior period adjustments:
GASB Statement No. 84 Implementation (2)
Net position as of June 30, 2019, as restated

$

2,350,465

$

(138,449)

(5,150)

4,925
2,350,240

$

-

(138,449)

$

Fund Financials:
Proprietary
Funds
Internal
Service Funds

Governmental Funds
Major Funds

Nonmajor Fund
Public
Facilities
Improvements Other Special
General Fund Transportation
Capital
Revenue

Description
Fund balances or net position as of June 30, 2019, as previously reported
Prior Period Adjustments:
GASB Statement No. 84 Implementation (2)
Fund type correction (3)
Fund balances or net position as of June 30, 2019, as restated

$

412,401

$

$

(1,946)
410,455 $

108,791

$

164,816

(4,717)
104,074 $

4,717
169,533

Fiduciary Funds
Investment
Trust

Description
Fund balances or net position as of June 30, 2019, as previously reported $

4,757,540

Private
Purpose Trust
$

(569,178) $

(4,729,073)
28,467 $

1,946
(567,232) $

Risk
Management

$

19,137

$

7,086
26,223

$

(41,092)

$

(215)
(41,307)

Custodial Funds
External
Investment
Pool

Property Tax
Assessment
-

$

-

Payroll
Deductions

Other
Custodial Fund

$

-

$

-

128,727
128,727 $

10,646
10,646

$

255,259
255,259

Prior Period Adjustments:
GASB Statement No. 84 Implementation (2)
Fund balances or net position as of June 30, 2019, as restated

$

4,726,908
4,726,908 $

(1)

The prior period adjustment was made to correct an overstatement in construction in progress and record
prior period costs previously not reported for land and easements.

(2)

The adjustment was made to reflect the prior period cost related to the implementation of GASB Statement
No. 84 for Fiduciary Activities.

(3)

A prior period adjustment of $4.7 million was made to restate the beginning balance of Transportation Fund
by reimbursing the Public Facilities Improvements Capital Projects Fund for expenditures erroneously
recorded which results in net to zero.
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As of June 30, 2020, cash and investments are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows (In
thousands):
Discretely
Presented
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities
Activities
Unit
Cash and investments

$

1,785,261 $

$

2,283,446 $

Restricted cash and investments
Total cash and investments

498,185

191,389 $
127,737
319,126 $

27,949 $

Fiduciary
Funds

5,547,794 $ 7,552,393

27,949 $

Total

-

625,922

5,547,794 $ 8,178,315

As of June 30, 2020, cash and investments consist of the following (In thousands):
Deposits

$

166,631

Investments
Total cash and investments

$

8,011,684
8,178,315

Investment in State Investment Pool
The County is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by California
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The State Treasurer’s
Office reports its investments at fair value. The fair value of securities in the State Treasurer’s pooled investment
program, including LAIF, generally is based on quoted market prices. The State Treasurer’s Office performs a
quarterly fair value valuation of the pooled investment program portfolio and a monthly fair value valuation of all
securities held against carrying cost. The quarterly report on the resources Pooled Money Investment Account is posted
to the State Treasurer’s Office website at www.treasurer.ca.gov. The fair value of the County’s investment in this pool
is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the County’s prorated share of the fair
value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an
amortized cost basis. As of June 30, 2020, reported under investments, CORAL had $2.5 million and RUHS-Medical
Center had $11.6 million for a total amount of $14.1 million in LAIF.
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements
Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements of the respective
component units, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the County’s investment
policy. These provisions allow for the acquisition of investment agreements with maturities of up to 30 years.
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the measurement of how changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the more sensitive to changes in market interest rates
is its fair value. One of the ways the County Treasurer manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a
combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so a portion of the
portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity to ensure the cash flow and liquidity required for operations.
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Concentration of Credit Risk
The investment policy of the County contains certain limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer
beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, 'HSRVLWV
DQG ,QYHVWPHQW 5LVN 'LVFORVXUHV, the County should provide information about the concentration of credit risk
associated with its investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total County investments. These
investments are identified on the investment table below.
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code
requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local government units by pledging securities in
an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under State law or a letter of credit issued by the Federal
Home Loan Bank of San Francisco (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The fair value of the pledged
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.
California law also allows financial institutions to secure County deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes
having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. GASB Statement No. 40 requires that a disclosure is made
with respect to custodial credit risks relating to deposits. The County has cash deposits with fiscal agents in excess of
federal depository insurance limits held in collateralized accounts with securities held by Union Bank in the amount
of $324 million. Investment securities are registered and held in the name of the County.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This
is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the County’s Investment Policy
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the County by the California Government Code
or the County’s investment policy, whichever is more restrictive. The table also identifies certain provisions that
address interest rate, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. A copy of the County’s investment policy can be
found at www.countytreasurer.org/.
Authorized Investment Type
Municipal bonds (MUNI)
U.S. treasuries
Local agency obligations (LAO)
Federal agencies
Commercial paper (CP)
Certificate & time deposits (NCD & TCD)
Repurchas e agreements (REPO)
Reverse REPOS
Medium term notes (MTNO) or Corporate Notes
CalTRUST short term fund
Money market mutual funds (MMF)
Local agency investment fund (LAIF)
Cash/depos it account
Supra-national agency bond (SUPRA)

Maximum
Maturity

Maximum
Percentage
of Portfolio

Maximum
Investment
in One Iss uer

4 Years
5 Years
3 Years
5 Years
270 Days
1 Year
45 Days
60 Days
3 Years
Daily Liquidity
Daily Liquidity
Daily Liquidity
N/A
4 Years

15%
100%
2.5%
100%
40%
25%
40% / 25%
10%
20%
1%
20%
Max $50M
N/A
20%

5% **
N/A
2.5%
N/A
5% *
5% *
20%
10%
5% *
1%
N/A
N/A
N/A
10%

* Maximum of 5% per iss uer in combined commercial paper, certificate & time depos its, and medium term notes.
** For credit rated below AA-/Aa3, 2% maximum in one issuer only for State of California debt.
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As of June 30, 2020, the County and Component Units had the following investments (In thousands):

$

Investments measured at amortized cost
Farmer mac
Certificates of deposit
Negotiable certificates of deposit
Managed rate accounts
CalTRUST short term fund
Money market mutual funds (II)
Total investments measured at amortized cost
Total County treasurer investments
Investments measured at amortized cost
Money market funds
Certificates of deposit
Local agency investment fund
Money market mutual funds (II)
Investment agreements
Total blended component unit investments
measured at amortized cost
Total blended component unit investments
Total investments

Maturity

2,031,874
1,325,088
359,415
1,817,332
766,106
155,965
130,631
249,977
84,803
6,921,191

0.07 - 2.63%
0.12 - 3.00%
0.20 - 2.88%
0.05 - 2.70%
0.20 - 2.70%
0.19 - 2.96%
1.37 - 4.00%
0.14 - 1.63%
1.65 - 2.25%

07/20 - 11/24
07/20 - 06/25
07/20 - 06/25
07/20 - 03/25
08/20 - 06/25
03/21 - 06/23
07/20 - 04/22
07/20 - 09/20
09/20 - 03/21

0.47
2.77
2.09
0.73
1.71
0.24
1.06
0.07
0.46

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
AA-/Aa3/AAA1/P1/F1
AA/Aa2/AA

25,003
100,000
50,000
375,000
4,024
329,000
883,027
7,804,218

0.72%
1.62 - 1.65%
1.85%
0.09 - 0.50%
1.09%
0.10 - 0.16%

03/21
11/20
07/20
07/20
07/20
07/20

0.10
0.39
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

N/A
AA/Aa2/AA
A1/P1/F1
N/A
N/A
AAA

100,145
1,000
14,139
87,764
4,418

0.00 - 0.16%
0.30%
1.89%
0.01 - 5.92%
4.83%

10/19 - 10/20
07/20

207,466
$

Minimum
Legal Rating
(I)

Interest Rate
Range

June 30, 2020
County treasurer investments
Investments by fair value level
U.S. treasuries
Federal home loan mortgage corporation
Federal national mortgage association
Federal home loan bank
Federal farm credit bank
Farmer mac
Municipal notes
Commercial paper
Corporate notes
Total County treasurer investments by fair value level

Weighted
Average
Maturity
(Years)

207,466
8,011,684

(I) Investment ratings are from Standard and Poor's (S&P) and Moody's Investor Service (Moody's).
(II) Government Code requires money market mutual funds to be rated.
N/A — Not Applicable
N/R — Not Required
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June 30, 2020
NOTE 4 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Fair Value Measurements
The County has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2020 (In thousands):
Fair Value Measurements Using

Rating (1)
June 30, 2020

AA+/Aaa
AA+/Aaa
AA+/Aaa
AA+/Aaa
N/R
AAA/Aaa
AAA/Aaa
AAA/Aaa

N/A
AAA/Aaa
AA-/Aa2
N/R
AAA/Aaa
AAA/Aaa

AAA/Aaa
N/R
N/R/Aaa

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets
% of
Portfolio
(Level 1)

26.04%
16.98%
4.61%
23.29%
9.82%
2.00%
1.67%
3.20%
1.09%
88.69%

0.32%
1.28%
0.64%
4.81%
0.05%
4.22%
11.31%
100.00%

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

$ 2,031,874

2,031,874

2,031,874

$ 1,325,088
359,415
1,817,332
766,106
155,965
130,631
249,977
84,803
4,889,317

$ 2,031,874
1,325,088
359,415
1,817,332
766,106
155,965
130,631
249,977
84,803
6,921,191

-

4,889,317

County treasurer investments
Investments by fair value level
U.S. treasuries
Federal home loan mortgage corporation
Federal national mortgage association
Federal home loan bank
Federal farm credit bank
Farmer mac
Municipal notes
Commercial paper
Corporate notes
Total County treasurer investments by fair value level

Investments measured at amortized cost
25,003 Farmer mac
100,000 Certificates of deposit
50,000 Negotiable certificates of deposit
375,000 Managed rate accounts
4,024 CalTRUST short term fund
329,000 Money market mutual funds (II)
883,027 Total investments measured at amortized cost
7,804,218 Total County treasurer investments

-

48.27%
0.48%
6.82%
42.30%
2.13%

Investments measured at amortized cost
Money market funds
Certificates of deposit
Local agency investment fund
Money market mutual funds (II)
Investment agreements
Total blended component unit investments
207,466
measured at amortized cost
207,466 Total blended component unit investments
$ 8,011,684 Total investments
100,145
1,000
14,139
87,764
4,418

100.00%
100.00%

June 30, 2020

$ 2,031,874

$ 4,889,317

$

-

(I) Investment ratings are from Standard and Poor's (S&P) and Moody's Investor Service (Moody's).
(II) Government Code requires money market mutual funds to be rated.
N/A — Not Applicable
N/R — Not Required
The County and its component units categorize their fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting
principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3
measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows:
Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the County has the ability
to access.
Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation methodology include: quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in inactive markets; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; inputs that are derived principally from or
corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means.
Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement. Unobservable inputs reflect the County’s
own assumptions about the inputs market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability (including assumptions about risk). Unobservable inputs are
developed based on the best information available in the circumstances and may include the County’s own data.
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COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 5 – RESTRICTED CASH AND INVESTMENTS
The amount of assets restricted by legal and contractual requirements at June 30, 2020, is as follows (In thousands):
Governmental Activities
$

General Fund

417,867
1,866

Flood Control
Teeter Debt Service

35,025

Pension Obligation

8,711

Other Governmental Funds
CORAL
Local Agency Investment Fund

2,538

Restricted Cash and Other Investments
District Court Financing Corporation

9,816

Infrastructure Financing Authority

12,354
840
7,157

Inland Empire Tobacco Securitization

12,541

Public Financing Authority

1,824
34,716

Total Other Governmental Funds
Total Governmental Activities

498,185

Business-type Activities
Riverside University Health Systems - Medical Center
Local Agency Investment Fund

11,601

Restricted Cash and Other Investments

24,637
36,238

Total Riverside University Health Systems - Medical Center
Waste Resources

74,540

Housing Authority

10,504
6,455

Flood Control
Total Business-type Activities
Total Restricted Cash and Investments

127,737
$

625,922
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COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 6 – RECEIVABLES
Receivables at year-end of major individual funds, nonmajor funds, and internal service funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows (In thousands):
Receivables
Governmental activities:
General fund
Transportation
Flood Control
Teeter debt service
CARES Act Cornavirus Relief
Pension Obligation
Other governmental funds
Internal service funds
Total receivables

Accounts
$ 18,686
6,101
112
4,393
1,032
7,346
$ 37,670

Interest
Taxes
$ 4,046 $
12,206
228
16
511
1,462
44
54,541
593
9
485
1,904
602
$ 6,518 $
70,129

Total
Due From Governmental
Activities
Other Govts
$
360,840 $
395,778
13,899
20,244
1,396
3,481
54,585
593
4,402
12,849
16,270
1,005
8,953
$
389,989 $
504,306

Allowance
Total
Receivables
Due From
for
Business-type
Accounts
Interest
Taxes
Loans
Business-type activities:
Other Govts Uncollectibles
Activities
Riverside University Health Systems $ 378,935 $
- $
- $
- $
218,456 $ (339,409) $
257,982
Medical Center
Waste Resources
11,249
370
2,000
200
13,819
Housing Authority
2,129
3
96,305
(395)
98,042
Other
10,709
14
12
2,015
(9,857)
2,893
$ 403,022 $
387 $
12 $ 98,305 $
220,671 $ (349,661) $
372,736
Total receivables
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COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 7 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
(a) Interfund Receivables/ Payables
The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2020 is as follows (In thousands):
Due to/from other funds :

Receivable Fund

Payable Fund
General Fund
Delinquent property tax
Operating contribution
Interfund activity
Total General Fund
Transportation
Interfund activity
Total Transportation
Teeter Debt Service
Interfund activity
Total Teeter Debt Service
Other Governmental Funds
Interfund activity
Total Other Governmental Funds
Riverside University Health Systems-Medical Center
Interfund activity
Total Riverside University Health Systems-Medical Center
Housing Authority
Interfund activity
Total Housing Authority
Other Enterprise Funds
Interfund activity
Total Other Enterprise Funds
Internal Service Funds
Interfund activity
Total Internal Service Funds
Total Receivable

General Fund

Flood Control

$

$

$

-

-

Teeter Debt
Service
$

1,446
-

Other
Governmental
Funds
$

1,089

143

-

-

-

6,714

-

-

-

1,023

-

-

140

11,962

-

-

-

14

-

-

-

-

288

-

-

741

-

-

-

20,597

$

288

$

1,446

$

1,229

These interfund balances result from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable
expenditures occur, and (2) payments between funds are made.
Advances to/from other funds:
The General Fund advanced $3.3 million to the Economic Development Agency for the internal service fund start up costs.
The General Fund advanced Housing Authority $1.5 million to pay off the principal and interest on predevelopment loans.
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COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 7 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(a) Interfund Receivables/ Payables (Continued)

Riverside
University
Health
SystemsMedical
Center
$

$

Other
Enterprise
Funds

17,706
7,601

$

15,729
7,873

Internal
Service Funds

Total Payable

$

$

499

1,446
33,435
17,062
51,943

-

-

-

143
143

-

-

-

6,714
6,714

-

10

755

1,928
1,928

-

16,503

-

28,465
28,465

-

-

-

14
14

-

-

-

288
288

-

-

-

741
741
90,236

25,307

$

40,115

$

1,254

$

General Fund
Delinquent property tax
Operating contribution
Interfund activity
Total General Fund
Transportation
Interfund activity
Total Transportation
Teeter Debt Service
Interfund activity
Total Teeter Debt Service
Other Governmental Funds
Interfund activity
Total Other Governmental Funds
Riverside University Health Systems-Medical Center
Interfund activity
Total Riverside University Health Systems-Medical
Housing Authority
Interfund activity
Total Housing Authority
Other Enterprise Funds
Interfund activity
Total Other Enterprise Funds
Internal Service Funds
Interfund activity
Total Internal Service Funds
Total Receivable

Advances to/from other funds (Continued):
Waste Resources advanced $1.0 million to Public Facilities Capital Project Improvement Fund for East County Detention Cent
Waste Resources advanced $18.5 million to RUHS-MC for Huron Consulting Services.
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COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 7 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Transfers
(b) Between Funds within the Governmental Activities:1

Transfer In

Transfer Out
General Fund
*To finance capital projects
*For debt service payments
*Operating contribution
*For professional services
*To fund pension obligation
Total general fund
Transportation
*To finance capital projects
*For professional services
*To fund pension obligation
Total transportation
CARES Act Coronavirus Relief
*Operating contribution
Total cares act coronavirus relief
Flood Control
*For debt service payments
*To fund pension obligation
Total Flood Control
Teeter Debt Service
*For debt service payments
Total teeter debt service
Other Governmental Funds
*To finance capital projects
*For debt service payments
*For Fire protection services
*For professional services
*Operating contribution
*To fund pension obligation
Total other governmental funds
Riverside University Health System-Medical Center
*To fund pension obligation
Total Riverside University Health System-Medical Center
Waste Resources
*To fund pension obligation
Total Waste Resources
Housing Authority
*To fund pension obligation
Total Housing Authority
Other Enterprise Funds
*To fund pension obligation
Total other enterprise funds
Internal Service Funds
* Business Services
*Operating contribution
*To fund pension obligation
Total Internal Service Funds
Total transfers in

General Fund

Transportation

$

$

$

-

75
3,056
-

Teeter
Debt
Service

Flood
Control
$

-

$

T
e
e
Other
t Governmental
e
Funds

Pension
Obligation

3,032
-

$

26,371

$

23,938
66,968
21,196
6,693
-

2,438
-

-

-

-

949

18
4
-

36,590

217

-

-

-

77,142

-

-

-

-

1

2,963
-

3

-

-

-

-

-

33,114
69,683
15,562
1,134
152

3,495
2,486
-

-

-

580

14,162
12,084
7,425
1,890
-

-

-

-

-

5,661

-

-

-

-

-

362

-

-

-

-

-

170

-

-

-

-

-

812

-

36
-

-

133
-

-

2,042

-

158,712

$

9,329

$

1) These transfers were eliminated in the consolidation, by column, for the Governmental and Business-type Activities.
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133

$

3,032

$

36,948

$

234,483

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial, Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 7 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Transfers (Continued)
(b) Between Governmental and Business-type Activities:

Transfers In
Riverside
University Health
Systems Medical
Center
$

10,000
7,601
-

Waste
Resources
$

Housing
Authority
-

$

-

Other
Enterprise
Funds
$

7,873
-

Total
Transfers
Out

Internal
Service
Funds
$

3,151
-

$

23,938
80,000
39,896
9,749
26,371
179,954

-

-

-

-

-

18
2,442
949
3,409

17,705

45

25

15,729

1,205

148,658
148,658

-

-

-

-

-

2,963
1
2,964

-

-

-

-

-

3
3

3,277
-

-

-

252
-

692
-

54,048
12,084
69,683
25,473
3,968
732
165,988

-

-

-

-

-

5,661
5,661

-

-

-

-

-

362

362

$

-

-

-

-

-

170
170

-

-

-

-

-

812
812

31
-

-

-

-

3,432
-

25

$ 23,854

3,432
200
2,042
5,674
$ 513,655

38,614

$

45

$

$

8,480
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*Principal purpose for transfer
General Fund
*To finance capital projects
*For debt service payments
*Operating contribution
*For professional services
*To fund pension obligation
Total general fund
Transportation
*To finance capital projects
*For professional services
*To fund pension obligation
Total transportation
CARES Act Coronavirus Relief
*Operating contribution
Total cares act coronavirus relief
Flood Control
*For debt service payments
*To fund pension obligation
Total Flood Control
Teeter Debt Service
*For debt service payments
Total teeter debt service
Other Governmental Funds
*To finance capital projects
*For debt service payments
*For Fire protection services
*For professional services
*Operating contribution
*To fund pension obligation
Total other governmental funds
Riverside University Health System-Medical Center
*To fund pension obligation
Total Riverside University Health System-Medical Center
Waste Resources
*To fund pension obligation
Total Waste Resources
Housing Authority
*To fund pension obligation
Total Housing Authority
Other Enterprise Funds
*To fund pension obligation
Total other enterprise funds
Internal Service Funds
* Business Services
*Operating contribution
*To fund pension obligation
Total Internal Service Funds
Total transfers in

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 8 – CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows (In thousands):
Balance
June 30, 2019
as Restated

Additions

Deletions/
Adjustments

Balance
June 30, 2020

Transfers

Governmental activities:
&DSLWDODVVHWVQRWEHLQJGHSUHFLDWHG
Land & easements
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$

587,652
762,613

$

11,329
201,657

$

(1,602) $
(1,542)

- $
(64,560)

597,379
898,168

(64,560)

1,495,547

1,350,265

212,986

(3,144)

3,736,104
110
1,879,416

27,814
5,635

(887)

49,805
10,019

3,813,723
110
1,894,183

616,025

40,157

(26,989)

4,727

633,920

6,231,655

73,606

(27,876)

64,551

6,341,936

(1,698,394)
(30)
(580,748)

(117,160)
(1)
(47,823)

526

(372,747)
(2,651,919)

(45,908)
(210,892)

25,469
25,995

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

3,579,736

(137,286)

(1,881)

Governmental activities capital assets, net

$ 4,930,001 $

75,700

&DSLWDODVVHWVEHLQJGHSUHFLDWHG
Infrastructure
Land improvements
Structures and improvements
Equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure
Land improvements
Structures and improvements
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
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$

(5,025) $

33
-

(1,815,521)
(31)
(628,045)

(24)
9

(393,210)
(2,836,807)

64,560
-

3,505,129
$

5,000,676

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 8 – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows (In thousands):
Balance
July 1, 2019

Additions

Deletions/
Adjustments

Balance
June 30, 2020

Transfers

Business-type activities:
&DSLWDODVVHWVQRWEHLQJGHSUHFLDWHG
Land & easements
Construction in progress
Concession arrangements

$

21,524 $
49,089
8,830

12 $
15,645
-

(12) $
(4,406)
-

- $
(3,320)
-

21,524
57,008
8,830

79,443

15,657

(4,418)

(3,320)

87,362

&DSLWDODVVHWVEHLQJGHSUHFLDWHG
Infrastructure
Land improvements
Structures and improvements
Equipment

105,537
21,402
285,609
206,319

3,768
1
192,146
34,701

4,394
(68)
(7,543)

1,839
1,495

113,699
21,403
479,526
234,972

Total capital assets, being depreciated

618,867

230,616

(3,217)

3,334

849,600

(60,438)
(15,498)
(139,288)
(147,655)
(362,879)

(3,740)
(727)
(10,175)
(22,720)
(37,362)

4,560
4,560

255,988

193,254

1,343

335,431 $

208,911 $

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure
Land improvements
Structures and improvements
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Business-type activities capital assets, net

$

(3,075) $

Depreciation
Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows (In thousands):
General government
$
Public protection
Health and sanitation
Public assistance
Public ways and facilities
Recreation and cultural services
Education
Depreciation on capital assets held by the County’s
internal service funds is charged to the various functions
based on their use of the assets
Total depreciation expense – governmental functions

$

75

48,735
13,476
1,147
200
117,561
3,004
7,485
19,284
210,892

(14)
(14)

(64,178)
(16,225)
(149,463)
(165,829)
(395,695)

3,320
-

453,905
$

541,267

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 8 – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to business-type functions as follows (In thousands):
RUHS-Medical Center
Waste Resources
Housing Authority
RUHS-CHC

$

26,041
7,274
1,088
2,927

Flood Control
County Service Areas

21
11

Total depreciation expense – business-type functions

$

37,362

Capital Leases
Leased property under capital leases by major class (In thousands):
Governmental Business-type
Activities
Activities
$
488 $
62,124
190,733
127,917
43,979
(76,536)
(22,902)

Land
Structures and improvements
Equipment
Less: Accumulated amortization
Total leased property, net

$

113,993

$

211,810

Discretely Presented Component Unit
Activity for the Riverside County Children and Families Commission for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows
(In thousands):
Balance
July 1, 2019
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$

Capital assets, being depreciated
Building and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated

$

1,898
107
2,005

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Total capital assets, net

373
373

$

Deletions/
Adjustments

Additions
-

$

-

-

Balance
June 30, 2020

Transfers
$

-

$

373
373

-

-

1,898
107
2,005

(275)
(91)
(366)

(54)
(10)
(64)

-

-

(329)
(101)
(430)

1,639

(64)

-

-

1,575

(64) $

-

2,012

$

76

$

-

$

1,948

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 9 – SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (SCA)
*$6%6WDWHPHQW1R 60, $FFRXQWLQJDQG)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJIRU6HUYLFH&RQFHVVLRQ $UUDQJHPHQWV 6&$), defines
DQ6&$DVDW\SHRISXEOLFprivate or publicSXEOLFSDUWQHUVKLS As used in GASB 6WDWHPHQW1R DQ6&$LVDQ
arrangement between a government (the transferor) and an operator in which all of the following criteria are met:
a)

The transferor conveys to the operator the right and related obligation to provide public service
through the use and operation of a capital asset (referred to in the statement as a “facility”) in exchange
for significant consideration, such as an upfront payment, installment payments, a new facility, or
LPSURYHPHQWVWRDQH[LVWLQJIDFLOLW\
b) The operator collects DQGLVFRPSHQVDWHGE\IHHVIURPWKLUGSDUWLHV
c) The transferor determines or has the ability to modify or approve what services the operator is required
to provide, to whom the operator is required to provide the services, and the prices or rates that can be
FKDUJHGIRUWKHVHUYLFHV
7KH&RXQW\KDVGHWHUPLQHGWKDWWKHIROORZLQJDUUDQJHPHQWs meet WKHFULWHULDVHWIRUWKDERYH ZKHUHWKH&RXQW\LV
the transferor) and therefore included these 6&$s in the County’s financial statements. GASB 6WDWHPHQW 1R 60
also provides guidance on accounting treatment if the County were acting as an operator of another government’s
IDFLOLW\ 7KH &RXQW\ KDV GHWHUPLQHG WKDW WKHUH DUH QR LQFLGHQFHV ZKHUH WKH &RXQW\ ZRXOG TXDOLI\ DV VXFK DQ
RSHUDWRU
McIntyre Park Campground
On October 15, 1985, and as later amended, the Park District (the Park) HQWHUHGLQWRDQDJUHHPHQWZLWK&DOifornia
(DVW&RDVW,QF WKH“&RPSDQ\” XQGHUZKLFKWKH&ompany will operate and collect user fees from a campground,
camp store, boat launch and recovery ramp, day-use area and marina fuel station through a lease with the Park at
0F,QW\UH&RXQW\3DUNWKURXJKWKH\HDU 7KH&ompany will pay the Park between ten and seventeen percent of
the revenues it earns from the operation of the caPSJURXQG 7KH&ompany is required to operate and maintain the
campground in accoUGDQFH ZLWK WKH /HDVH &RQWUDFW The Park reports the campground as a capital asset with a
carrying amount of $51WKRXVDQG at year-HQG The Park has received no upfront payments or installment payments
WKDWDUHUHTXLUHGWREHUHSRUWHGDVDGHIHUUHGLQIORZRIUHVRXUFHVRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV The Park also has no
contractual obligations to sacrifice financial resources that meet the criteria WREHUHFRJQL]HGDVDOLDELOLW\
Cove RV Resort
2QRUDERXW-DQXDU\DQGDVODWHUDPHQGHGWKH&RXQW\DQGODWHUWKH Park entered into an agreement with
&DYDQ,QF 7KHOHDVHZDVDVVLJQHGWR- :(QWHUSULVHVWKHQWR$OSLQH&DSLWDO//&WKHQ5H\QROGs Riviera Resorts,
DQGODVWO\WR7KH&RYH595HVRUW(the “&RPSDQ\”) as of December 2016 8QGHUWKHWHUPVRIWKHDJUHHPHQW, the
&ompany is permitted to engage in the operation of a travel trailer park, rental of spaces in the park, food service
operations including a grocery store, boat launching ramp, and other associated camping functions through June
2044 7KH&ompany will pay the Park the greater of $833 or seven percent of gross receipts earned from operation
of the RV Park The Park reports the RV Resort as a capital asset with a carrying amount of $131WKRXVDQG at
year-HQG The Park has received no upfront payments or installment payments that are required to be reported as a
GHIHUUHGLQIORZRIUHVRXUFHVRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV The Park also has no contractual obligations to sacrifice
financial resources that meet the criteria WREHUHFRJQL]HGDVDOLDELOLW\
Lake Skinner Recreation Area
2Q RU DERXW 1RYHPEHU 1, 2007, WKH 3DUN HQWHUHG LQWR DQ DJUHHPHQW ZLWK 3\UDPLG (QWHUSULVH ,QF GED 5RFN\
0RXQWDLQ 5HFUHDWLRQ &RPSDQ\ RI 3LUX &DOLIRUQLD WKH “&RPSDQ\”) to sublease its rights to Lake Skinner
5HFUHDWLRQ$UHD&RQFHVVLRQDLUH 8QGHUWKHSURYLVLRQVRIWKHDJUHHPHQWWKH&RPSDQ\LVSHUPLWWHGWR engage in the
operation of a marina, camp store, cafe, parking lots, laundry facility, fueling station, and ELNHVKRS The monthly
paymenWIURPWKH&RPSDQ\WRWKHPark will be the greater of the combination of 7% of all retail gross sales, 9% of
all rental gross sales, and 2RIDOOIXHOJURVVVDOHVRU5 thousand The Park has received no upfront payments or
installment payments that are required to be reported as a GHIHUUHGLQIORZRIUHVRXUFHVRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
The Park also has no contractual obligations to sacrifice financial resources that meet the criteria to be recognized as
DOLDELOLW\ The term of the DJUHHPHQWLV\HDUVUHQHZDEOHLQ\HDULQFUHPHQWV

77

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 9 – SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (SCA) (Continued)
Gopher Hole Camp Store
On February 7, 2018, the Park entered into an agreement with 3\UDPLG (QWHUSULVHV ,QF GED 5RFN\ 0RXQWDLQ
Recreation Company of Piru, California (the “Company”) to lease the Rancho Jurupa Regional Park Gopher Hole
FDPS VWRUH 8QGHU WKH SURYLVLRQV RI WKH DJUHHPHQW WKH &RPSDQ\ LV SHUPLWWHG WR HQJDJH LQ WKH RSHUDWion of the
store, office, storage 107, DQG VWRUDJH  7KH &RPSDQ\ ZLOO pay the Park ten percent of gross receipts earned
IURPRSHUDWLRQRIWKHVWRUHHDFKPRQWK All remaining areas will remain under the control and responsibility of the
3DUN The term of the agreement is 3 years, with the option to renew 2 more years
Edom Hill Transfer Station
2Q1RYHPEHUWKHDepartment of Waste Resources entered into a 30year agreement with Burrtec Recovery
DQG7UDQVIHU//& %XUUWHF XQGHUZKLFK%XUUWHFhas the rights to construct the Edom Hill Transfer Station in order
to serve the traditional users/wasteVKHGRIWKHFORVHG(GRP+LOO/DQGILOODQGRSHUDWHWKHWUDQVIHUVWDWLRQ
Cove Waterpark and Dropzone Waterpark
On April 18, 2017, the Economic Development Agency (the Agency) entered into a 5year agreement with
Standguard Aquatics, Inc., a Georgia Corporation (the “Company”) to operate and maintain the Cove Waterpark and
the Dropzone Waterpark (the “Waterparks”) in a clean, safe and gooGFRQGLWLRQ The Waterparks are to be operated
as paid recreational and competitive use facilities with food and beverage and other concessions as provided by the
$JHQF\ 7KH&RPSDQ\VKDOOSD\WKH$JHQF\Dquarterly SHUFHQWDJHUHQW The percentage rent shall be calculated by
PXOWLSO\LQJ WKHJURVV UHYHQXHV IURP WKH :DWHUSDUNV IRU WKH DSSOLFDEOH TXDUWHUO\SHULRGE\ D IDFWRU RI SHUFHQW
The Agency has received no upfront payments or installment payments that are required to be reported as a deferred
infORZ RI UHVRXUFHV RQ WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV The Agency also has no contractual obligations to sacrifice
ILQDQFLDO UHVRXUFHV WKDW PHHW WKH FULWHULD WR EH UHFRJQL]HG DV D OLDELOLW\ The term of the agreement is 5 years,
UHQHZDEOHLQRQH\HDUH[WHQVLRQ
A summary of the important details and capital assets pertaining to the 6&$s are described below (In thousands)
Date SCA
Entered Into

0F,QW\UH3DUN&DPSJURXQG

&RYH595HVRUW

Lake Skinner Recreation Area

*RSKHU+ROH&DPS6WRUH

10/15/1985

1/1/1970

Term
of SCA

62 years

74 years

Minimum
Rent
Payment
(per month)

Expiration
of SCA

Revenue Sharing

10/15/2047

%HWZHHQDQGRIWKH
revenues it earns from the operation of
WKHFDPSJURXQG

6/30/2044

*UHDWHURIRURIJURVV
receipts earned from operation of the
59SDUN



*UHDWHURIWKHFRPELQDWLRQRIRIDOO
UHWDLOJURVVVDOHVRIDOOUHQWDO
JURVVVDOHVDQGRIDOOIXHOJURVV
VDOHVRUWKRXVDQG



$



11/1/2007

15 years

10/31/2022

2/7/2018

3 years

2/7/2021

RIPRQWKO\JURVVUHYHQXHVIURP
WKHRSHUDWLRQRIWKHVWRUH





Edom Hill Transfer Station

11/2/2002

30 years

11/2/2032

6HUYLFH)HHUDQJLQJIURPWR
SHUWRQ'LVSRVDOIHHRISHUWRQ
DQG&LW\0LWLJDWLRQ)HHRISHUWRQ
IRUDOOLQFRPLQJVROLGZDVWH

&RYHDQG'URS]RQH
Waterparks

4/18/2017

5 years

5/18/2022

RIWKHTXDUWHUO\JURVVUHYHQXHV
IURPWKHRSHUDWLRQRIWKHZDWHUSDUNV


$
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NOTE 9 – SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (SCA) (Continued)
&DSLWDODVVHWVEDODQFHIRUWKH6&$s for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and over the terms of the agreements are
as follows (In thousands):
Land, Structures, &
Structure
Improvements
0F,QW\UH3DUN&DPSJURXQG
&RYH595HVRUW
Lake Skinner Recreation Area
*RSKHU+ROH&DPS6WRUH
Edom Hill Transfer Station
&RYHDQG'URS]RQH:DWHUSDUNV

$

$

52
131


8,830
44,419
53,432

7KH GHIHUUHG LQIORZV RI UHVRXUFHV DFWLYLW\ IRU WKH 6&$ for the year ended June 30, 2020 are as follows (In
thousands):

SCA Capital Assets

Balance
July 1, 2019

0F,QW\UH3DUN&DPSJURXQG 2

$

&RYH595HVRUW

2

Lake Skinner Recreation Area
*RSKHU+ROH&DPS6WRUH

2

2

Edom Hill Transfer Station
&RYHDQG'URS]RQH:DWHUSDUNV
Total deferred inflows
1

2

$

Additions/
Restatements



$



Amortization1
$



Balance
June 30, 2020
$



























5,790







5,790

$



(434)

5,356


$

(434)


$

5,356

$PRUWL]DWLRQFDOFXODWHGXVLQJWKHVWUDLJKWOLQHPHWKRGIRUWKHWHUPRIWKHDJUHHPHQWIRUWKH6&$

2

1RXSIURQWSD\PHQWVUHFHLYHGRULQVWDOOPHQWSD\PHQWVWKDWDUHUHTXLUHGWREHUHSRUWHGDVDGHIHUUHGLQIORZ
RIUHVRXUFHV
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NOTE 10 - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE CARE COSTS
State and federal laws and regulations require Waste Resources to place a final cover on all active landfills when
closed and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site foU \HDUVDIWHUFORVXUH
Waste Resources will recognize the remaining estimated cost of $96 million as the remaining estimated capacity of
148 million WRQVLVILOOHG Waste Resources expects all currently permitted landfill capacities to be filled by 2107
The total estimated closure liability of $230 million and postclosure care costs of $455 million is based on what it
would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care costs at present value Actual costs may be different due to
inflation, changes in technology, RUFKDQJHVLQUHJXODWLRQV
In addition to the liability amounts calculated per the &DOLIRUQLD'HSDUWPHQWRI5HVRXUFHV5HF\FOLQJDQG5HFRYHU\
(&DO5HF\FOH) regulations that are designated to the Escrow Funds, Waste Resources is also responsible for the post
closure care costs related to twentysix (26) other landfill sites that hDYHEHHQLQDFWLYHRUFORVHGVLQFHEHIRUH
Liability for these sites fluctuates dependent on the needs of each site and changes to, or the implementation of, laws
and UHJXODWLRQV As of June 30, 2020, the postclosure liability is estimated at $339 PLOOLRQ
&XPXODWLYHexpenses, percentage of landfill capacity used to date, outstanding recognized liability, and the estimated
remaining landfill life by operating landfill are as follows (In thousands):

)DFLOLW\1DPH &LW\
Total Estimate
Badlands (Moreno Valley)
$
10,811
Blythe (Blythe)
5,219
(GRP+LOO &DWKHGUDO&LW\
5,808
/DPE&DQ\RQ %HDXPRQW
8,470
'HVHUW&HQWHU 'HVHUW&HQWHU
451
Mecca II (Mecca)
1,020
Oasis (Oasis)
886
7RWDO&ORVXUH(VWLPDWH $
32,665
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&DSDFLW\
8VHGDVRI
June 30, 2020








Outstanding
Recognized
Liability
$
8,336
1,843
5,808
5,024
267
1,007
752
$
23,037

(VWLPDWHG<HDUV
Remaining
2
27
0
9
67
78
43

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 10 - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE CARE COSTS (Continued)
Post-Closure Escrow Fund Landfill Sites
)DFLOLW\1DPH &LW\
Estimated Liability
Badlands (Moreno Valley)
$
8,596
Blythe (Blythe)
2,667
&RDFKHOOD &RDFKHOOD
2,603
Double Butte (Winchester)
6,605
(GRP+LOO &DWKHGUDO&LW\
3,915
Highgrove (Riverside)
4,433
/DPE&DQ\RQ %HDXPRQW
6,144
Mead Valley (Perris)
3,557
Anza (Anza)
2,690
'HVHUW&HQWHU 'HVHUW&HQWHU
1,297
Mecca II (Mecca)
1,603
Oasis (Oasis)
1,431
7RWDO3RVW&ORVXUH(VWLPDWH $
45,541

Waste Resources is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to a trust fund to
finance closure and postFORVXUH FDUH Title 27 RI WKH &DOLIRUQLD &RGH RI 5HJXODWLRQV &&5  UHTXLUHV VROLG ZDVWH
landfill operators to demonstrate the availability of financial resources to conduct closure and postclosure
PDLQWHQDQFHDFWLYLWLHV Waste Resources expects that future inflation costs will be paid from interest earnings on these
DQQXDOFRQWULEXWLRQV However, if interest earnings are inadequate or additional closure and postclosure requirements
are determined (due to changes in technology or applicable laws or regulations), these costs may need to be covered
E\FKDUJHVWRIXWXUHODQGILOOXVHUV
In accordance with Sections 22228 and 22245 of tKH&&5WKH&RXQW\ has implemented Pledge of Revenue agreements
EHWZHHQWKH&RXQW\ and thH&DOLIRUQLD'HSDUWPHQWRI5HVRXUFHV5HF\FOLQJDQG5HFRYHU\ &DO5HF\FOH for the six
active landfills and the six closed landfills to demonstrate financial responsibility for postFORVXUHPDLQWHQDQFHFRVWV
Waste Resources has determined that the projected net revenues, after current operating costs, from tipping fees during
the 30year period of postclosure care maintenance will, during each year of this period, be greater than the yearly
monitoring and postFORVXUHFDUHPDLQWHQDQFHFRVWVIRUHDFKODQGILOO It is agreed that the amount of these Pledge of
Revenue agreements may increase or decrease to match any adjustments to the identified cost estimates, which is
mutually agreed to by Waste Resources and &DO5HF\FOH
NOTE 11 – OPERATING LEASES
The following is a schedule of future minimum rental payments required under operating leases entered into by the
&RXQW\ that have initial or remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2020 (In
thousands):
<HDU(QGLQJ-XQH
2021

$

47,267

2022

40,834

2023

34,902

2024

27,732

2025

19,025

2026  2030

41,228

2031  2035

9,710

2036  2040

775

2041  2045

279

2046  2050

108

Total Minimum Payments $ 221,860

Total rental expenditure/expense for the year ended June 30, 2020, was $1414 million, of which $ million was
recorded in the enterprise fXQGV
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NOTE 12 – ADVANCES FROM GRANTORS AND THIRD PARTIES
Under both the accrual and modified accrual bases of accounting, revenue may be recognized only when earned.
Therefore, the government-wide statement of net position as well as governmental and enterprise funds defer revenue
recognition in connection with resources that have been received as of year-end, but not yet earned. Assets recognized
in connection with a transaction before the earnings process is complete are offset by a corresponding liability for
advances from grantors and third parties.
The balance as of June 30, 2020, of advances from grantors and third parties is as follows (In thousands):
Balance
June 30, 2020
General Fund:
Advances on state and federal grants for mental health services
Advances on state funding for social services
Advances on state grants and third party advances for public health services
Advances on state grants for probation services
Advances on state and federal grants for sheriff services
Advances on state grants and other federal grants for environmental health services
Advances on state and federal grants for 2020 census and homeless assistance
Advances on state grants and third party advances for emergency management services
Advances on state grants for district attorney services
Advances on state grants for public safety
Advances on state grants for planning and engineering services
Advances on state grants for public defender services
Advances on state grants for veteran services
Advances on state grants and third party advances for animal services
Advances on state and federal grants for fire protection services
Advances for election services
Other advances
Total general fund

$

Transportation Special Revenue Fund:
Developer fees
Utility relocation
Advances from developers for road and construction projects
Survey fees
Deposit based fees
Advances for community facilities districts improvement projects
Total transportation special revenue fund

138,264
95,637
25,232
21,391
7,289
4,015
3,555
2,461
1,931
1,803
654
348
318
297
208
115
65
303,583
12,387
6,556
3,870
861
410
109
24,193

Flood Control Special Revenue Fund:
Advances for flood control projects
Total flood special revenue fund

532
532

CARES Act Coronavirus Relief Fund:
Advances from the federal government for COVID-19 related expenditures
Total CARES act fund

282,306
282,306

Other Governmental Funds:
Advances on state grant for homeless housing relief programs
Advances on state grant for bio-terrorism programs
Advances on state grant for health care services
Advances for facility renewal projects
Camping and recreation fees
Advances on state grant for community service block grant
Developer impact fees
Advances for aviation projects
Advances from third parties for recreational events
Other advances
Total other governmental funds
Grand total of advances from grantors and third parties

11,922
2,145
1,434
1,241
553
542
306
19
1
4
18,167
628,781
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NOTE 13 – SHORT-TERM DEBT
Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRANs)
On July 1, 2019, the County issued $340.0 million of tax exempt Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRANs),
which was paid by June 30, 2020. The notes were issued with a yield rate of 1.25% and a stated interest rate of 5.0%.
This was to provide needed cash to cover the projected intra-period cash-flow deficits of the County’s General Fund
during the fiscal year July 1 through June 30.
Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper Notes (Teeter)
In December 1993, the County adopted the Teeter Plan, the alternative method for the distribution of secured property
taxes and other assessments. In order to fulfill the requirements of the plan, the County obtained cash for the “buyout”
of delinquent secured property taxes and the annual advance of current unpaid taxes to all entities that elected to
participate in the Teeter Plan. The current financing takes place through the sale of Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper
Notes (Teeter Notes). During fiscal year 2019-20, the County retired $75.8 million and issued $84.3 million 2019
Series A teeter obligation notes (tax-exempt) which includes a premium of $228.0 thousand, leaving an outstanding
balance of $84.3 million at June 30, 2020.
Short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows (In thousands):
Balance
June 30, 2019
TRANs
Teeter notes
Total

$
$

- $
75,754
75,754

$

Additions
Reductions
340,000 $
(340,000) $
84,342
424,342 $
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Balance
June 30, 2020

(75,754)
(415,754) $

84,342
84,342
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 14 – LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Long-term obligations of the County consist of capital lease obligations, bonds, notes, and other liabilities that are
payable from the general, debt service, enterprise, and internal service funds. The calculated legal debt limit for the
County is $3.72 billion.
Capital Leases
Capital leases for governmental funds are recorded both as capital expenditures and as other financing sources at
inception in the fund financial statements, with the liability and the asset recorded in the government-wide statement
of net position. Capital leases are secured by a pledge of the leased capital asset.
See Note 8 (Capital Assets) for assets under capital leases and related disclosure information by major asset class.
The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease payments under capital leases, together with the present
value of the net minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2020 (In thousands):

Governmental
Activities
$
26,546

Year Ending June 30
2021

Business-type
Activities
$
15,712

2022

20,624

14,771

2023

16,041

13,964

2024

10,852

13,628

2025

9,862

11,934

2026-2030

36,735

45,618

2031-2035

33,265

38,064

2036-2040

1,104

39,976

2041-2045

-

56,665

Total minimum payments

155,029

250,332

Less amount representing interest

(25,742)

(8,230)

Present value of net minimum lease payments
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$

129,287

$

242,102
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NOTE 14 – LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
The following is a summary of governmental activities long-term liabilities transactions for the year ended June 30,
2020 (In thousands):

Balance
June 30, 2019
Governmental activities:
Debt long-term liabilities:
Bonds payable
Capital lease obligations
Certificates of participation
Bonds from Direct Placement
Total debt long-term liabilities
Other long-term liabilities:
Accreted interest payable
Compensated absences (a)
Estimated claims liabilities (b)
Total other long-term liabilities
Total governmental activities –
(a)
(b)

$

1,189,065
102,905
60,265
980
1,353,215
195,574
228,248
260,110
683,932
2,037,147

$

New
Additions

$

Payments
/ Reclass

732,870 $ (67,360)
51,117
(24,735)
(18,596)
(650)
783,987
(111,341)
25,117
(1,005)
7,389
(82)
53,055
(57,779)
85,561
(58,866)
869,548 $ (170,207)

$

Balance
June 30, 2020

$

$

1,854,575
129,287
41,669
330
2,025,861
219,686
235,555
255,386
710,627
2,736,488

Amounts
Due Within
One Year

$

$

87,905
22,571
18,570
330
129,376
141,045
60,864
201,909
331,285

General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Internal Service Funds are used to liquidate the compensated absences.
Internal Service Funds are used to liquidate the estimated claims liabilities.

The following is a summary of business-type and discretely presented component unit activities long-term liabilities
transactions for the year ended June 30, 2020 (In thousands):
Amounts
Balance
New
Payments
Balance
Due Within
June 30, 2019 Additions / Reclass June 30, 2020 One Year
Business-type activities:
Debt long-term liabilities:
Bonds payable, net of un-amortized
discount and losses
$
64,254 $
- $ (5,381) $
58,873 $
4,664
Capital lease
34,724
215,414
(8,036)
242,102
14,502
Total debt long-term liabilities
98,978
215,414
(13,417)
300,975
19,166
Other long-term liabilities:
Accreted interest payable
Compensated absences
Other long-term liabilities (a)
Total other long-term liabilities
Total business-type activities – longterm liabilities

79,922
41,577
11,007
132,506
$

231,484

6,540
2,959
43
9,542

(14,524)
(139)
(14,663)

$ 224,956 $ (28,080)

71,938
44,397
11,050
127,385
$

428,360

1,236
27,895
29,131
$

48,297

(a) For Business-type Activities under Other long-term liabilities consists of the following:

Housing Authority has three notes payable, totaling $11.0 million.

Balance
June 30, 2019
Discretely Presented Component Unit
Other long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences
Total discretely presented component
unit – long-term liabilities

Additions

Balance
Payments June 30, 2020

Amounts
Due
Within
One Year

$

304

$

50 $

(12)

$

342

$

191

$

304

$

50 $

(12)

$

342

$

191

The County has an unused line of credit in the amount of $17.1 million.
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NOTE 14 – LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
The following schedules provide details of all certificates of participation, bonds payable, and notes payable for the
County that are outstanding as of June 30, 2020 (In thousands):

Interest
Outstanding
Original
Rates to
Final
at
Type of Indebtedness
Borrowing
Maturity
Maturity
June 30, 2020
Governmental activities:
Certificates of Participation
CORAL
1990 Monterey Avenue: Serial Certificates

$

8,800

Variable

2020

$

800

45,685

Variable

2039

19,955

24,680

2.00% - 5.00%

2021

7,172

2009 Series A - Public Safety Communication
and Woodcrest Library Refunding Projects
2009 Larson Justice Center Refunding:
Serial Certificates
Total CORAL

79,165

27,927

Flood Control
Zone 4 - 2015 Negotiable Promissory Note

21,000

Total Flood Control

2.00% - 5.00%

2025

13,742

21,000

Total certificates of participations

$

100,165

$

33,360

13,742
$

41,669

$

24,369

Bonds payable
CORAL
2012 CAC Annex Refunding Project

2.00% - 5.00%

2031

2008 A Southwest Justice Center: Term Certificates

78,895

5.16%

2032

62,040

2013 Probation & RCIT: Term Bonds (Series A)

66,015

5.00% - 5.25%

2043

48,440

2014 Lease Refunding Court Facilities Project, Series A

10,890

2.00% - 5.00%

2033

7,711

2019 Taxable Lease Revenue Refunding Series A

12,875

1.87% - 3.40%

2044

12,875

Total CORAL

202,035

155,435

Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds
Pension Obligation Bonds (Series 2005-A)
Pension Obligation Bonds (Series 2020)
Total Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds

400,000

4.91% - 5.04%

2035

218,830

719,995

2.17% - 3.17%

2038

719,995

1,119,995

938,825

Inland Empire Tobacco Securitization Authority
Series 2007 C-1

$

53,542

6.63%

2036

Series 2007 C-2

29,653

6.75%

2045

29,653

Series 2007 D

23,458

7.00%

2057

23,457

Series 2007 E

18,948

7.63%

2057

18,949

Series 2007 F

$

53,542

27,076

8.00%

2057

27,076

Series 2019

100,000

3.68%

2028

91,970

Total Inland Empire Tobacco Securitization Authority

252,677
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NOTE 14 – LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
Bonds payable (continued)
Riverside County Public Financing Authority
Series 2012

17,640

3.00% - 5.00%

2021

11,470

Series 2015

325,000

2.00% - 5.00%

2046

330,122

Total Riverside County Public Financing Authority

342,640

341,592

Riverside County Infrastructure Financing Authority
Series 2015 A

72,825

2.00% - 5.00%

2054

67,251

Series 2016 A

36,740

2.00% - 4.00%

2032

37,815

Series 2017 A

46,970

3.00% - 4.00%

2045

47,067

Series 2017 B

11,595

3.00% - 5.00%

2038

11,272

10,610 3.125% - 5.00%

2047

Series 2017 C
Total Riverside Infrastructure Financing Authority
Total bonds payable

10,671

178,740

174,076

$ 2,096,087

$

1,854,575

$

330

Bonds from direct placement
CORAL
2011 Monroe Park Building Refunding

$

Total 2011 Monroe Park Building Refunding
Total bonds from direct placement
Total governmental activities

5,535

3.54%

2021

5,535
$

330

5,535

$

330

$ 2,201,787

$

1,896,574

$

24,142

Business-Type Activities
Bonds payable
Riverside University Health Systems - Medical Center (RUHS-MC)
1997 A Serial Capital Appreciation Bonds (net of
future capital appreciation of $130.5 million)

$

2012 Term bonds (Series A)
Total RUHS-MC
Total bonds payable
Total business-type activities

41,170

5.70% - 6.01%

2026

87,510

2.00% - 5.00%

2029

34,731

128,680

58,873

$

128,680

$

58,873

$

128,680

$

58,873

As of June 30, 2020, annual debt service requirements of governmental activities to maturity are as follows (In
thousands):
Bonds from Direct Placement
Certificates of Participation
Governmental
Fiscal Year Ending June 30
Principal
Interest
Principal
Interest
2021
$
330
$
6
$
18,570
$
1,407
2022
9,110
784
2023
2,660
513
2024
2,795
378
2025
2,935
241
2026 - 2030
1,060
768
2031 - 2035
1,405
523
2036 - 2040
1,880
196
Total requirements
330
6
40,415
4,810
Bond discount/premium, net
1,254
$
330
$
6
$
41,669
$
4,810
Total
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NOTE 14 – LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
Annual debt service requirements of governmental activities (Continued)
Governmental
Fiscal Year Ending June 30
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026 - 2030
2031 - 2035
2036 - 2040
2041 - 2045
2046 - 2050
2051 - 2055
2056 - 2060
Total requirements
Bond discount/premium, net
Total

Bonds Payable
Principal
Interest
$
87,905
$
61,238
92,305
63,155
103,610
59,573
111,210
55,592
102,565
51,199
486,898
200,934
454,005
108,860
140,200
47,337
131,101
22,325
37,592
596
22,331
47,150
4,671
1,816,872
675,480
37,703
$ 1,854,575
$
675,480

As of June 30, 2020, annual debt service requirements of business-type activities unit to maturity are as follows (In
thousands):
Business-type
Fiscal Year Ending June 30
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026 - 2030
2031 - 2035
2036 - 2040
2041 - 2045
2046 - 2050
2051 - 2055
2056 - 2060
2061 - 2065
2066 - 2070
Total requirements
Bond discount/premium, net
Total

Bonds Payable
Principal
Interest
$
4,664
$
16,086
4,376
16,374
4,125
16,626
3,878
16,873
3,655
17,096
34,579
19,758
55,277
102,813
3,596
$
58,873
$
102,813
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Other Long-term Liabilities
Principal
Interest
$
$
6,795
551
3,704
11,050
$
11,050
$

-
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Accreted Interest Payable
The following is a summary of the changes in accreted interest payable for the year ended June 30, 2020 (In
thousands):
Balance
June 30, 2019

Additions

Reductions

$

1,005

$

-

$

(1,005)

$

194,569
195,574

$

25,117
25,117

$

(1,005)

$

219,686
219,686

Riverside University Health Systems Medical Center (1997A Hosp)

$

79,922

$

6,540

$

(14,524)

$

71,938

Total business-type activities

$

79,922

$

6,540

$

(14,524)

$

71,938

Governmental Activities:
&HUWLILFDWHVRI3DUWLFLSDWLRQ
Court Financing (U.S. District Court
Project)
%RQGV
Inland Empire Tobacco Securitization
Authority
Total governmental-type activities

Balance
June 30, 2020

$

-

Business-type Activities:
/HDVH5HYHQXH%RQGV

The accreted interest payable balances at June 30, 2020, represent accreted interest on the 2007 Inland Empire
Tobacco Securitization Authority Bonds and the 1997 A Hospital Serial Capital Appreciation Bonds. The original
issues were $294.1 million for the 2007 Inland Empire Tobacco Securitization Authority Bonds and $41.2 million for
the 1997 A Hospital Serial Capital Appreciation Bonds. The total accreted value on the bonds upon maturity will be
$171.6 million for the 1997 A Hospital Serial Capital Appreciation Bonds and $3.47 billion for the 2007 Inland Empire
Tobacco Securitization Authority Bonds. The County is under no obligation to make payments of accreted value or
redemption premiums, if any, or interest on the Series 2007 Bonds.
The increases of $25.1 million and $6.5 million represent current year’s accretion for governmental activities and
business-type activities, respectively. The accumulated accretion for business-type activities was $71.9 million at June
30, 2020. The accumulated accretion for the Inland Empire Tobacco Securitization Authority in governmental
activities was $219.7 million. The un-accreted balances at June 30, 2020 are $21.0 million for the 1997-A Hospital
RUHS-MC project, and $3.25 billion for the Inland Empire Tobacco Securitization Authority Bonds.
Bonds, Certificates of Participation / Refunding
In September 2019, CORAL issued $12.9 million in taxable lease revenue refunding bonds, Taxable Lease Revenue
Refunding Bonds, 2019 Series A. The 2019 Series A Bonds are being issued for the purpose of refunding a portion
of the outstanding 2013 Series A Bonds (Public Defender/Probation Building and Riverside County Technology
Solutions Center Projects) and pay the cost incurred in connection with the issuance of the bonds. The transaction
resulted in an economic gain of $513.0 thousand.
In April 2020, the County issued $720.0 million in taxable pension obligation bonds, Taxable Pension Obligation
Bonds, Series 2020. The Series 2020 bonds were issued under a Trust Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2005, as
supplemented by a First Supplemental Trust Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2020 between the County and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as Trustee, to refund a portion of the County’s obligations to the California Public
Employee’s Retirement System (CalPERS) under the CalPERS Contract, evidencing a portion of the County’s
obligation to pay the County’s unfunded accrued actuarial liability to CalPERS and pay the costs of issuance related
to the Series 2020 Bonds.
Defeasance of Debt
In December 2009, CORAL issued $24.7 million of certificates of participation (2009 Larson Justice Center Project
Refunding Certificate of Participation) to provide funds to refund and prepay the certificates of participation relating
to the 1998 Larson Justice Center Project with an outstanding principal amount of $23.7 million; to fund the reserve
fund; and to pay certain costs of issuance incurred in connection with this refunding. The requisition price exceeded
the net carry amount of the old debt by $1.0 million. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized
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Defeasance of Debt (continued)
over the new debt’s life. The transaction resulted in an economic gain of $3.7 million and a reduction of $1.5 million
in future debt service payments.
In December 2009, CORAL also issued $45.7 million of certificates of participation (2009 Public Safety
Communication and Woodcrest Library Projects Refunding Certification of Participation) to provide funds to refund
and redeem the certificates of participation relating to 2007 Series B Public Safety Communication Project with an
outstanding principal amount of $37.4 million; to provide funds to refund and retire the series 2006 Certificates of
Participation Anticipation Note relating to Woodcrest Library Project with an outstanding principal amount of $6.0
million; to fund capitalized interest on a portion of the certificates of participation through July 1, 2012; to fund a
security deposit with respect to base rental payable under the sublease; and to pay certain costs of issuance incurred
in connection with this refunding. The reacquisition price exceeded the net carry amount of the old debts by $2.3
million. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the new debt’s life. The transaction
resulted in an economic gain of $3.3 million and an addition of $6.9 million in future debt service payments.
On February 28, 2011, CORAL issued $5.5 million in private placement bonds (2011 Monroe Building) to provide
funds to refund and redeem the notes payable relating to the 2007 Monroe Park Building loan with an outstanding
principal amount of $5.4 million and to pay certain costs of issuance incurred in connection with this refunding. The
reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $140.0 thousand. This amount is being netted
against the new debt and amortized over the new debt’s life. The transaction resulted in an economic gain of $527.2
thousand and a reduction of $339.2 thousand in future debt service payments.
In February 2012, CORAL issued $33.4 million in lease revenue bonds (2012 County Administrative Center
Refunding Projects) to provide funds to refund and prepay the certificates of participation relating to 2001 County
Administrative Center (CAC) Annex with an outstanding principal amount of $31.4 million; to fund the reserve fund;
to pay certain costs of issuance incurred in connection with this refunding; and to acquire two office buildings located
in Indio, California. The requisition price exceeded the net carry amount of the old debt by $2.0 million. This amount
is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the new debt’s life. The transaction resulted in an economic
gain of $5.0 million and a reduction of $3.6 million in future debt service payments.
In July 2012, CORAL issued $90.5 million in lease revenue bonds (2012 Series A and Taxable Series B County of
Riverside Capital Projects) to provide funds to refund and prepay CORAL’s Leasehold Revenue Bonds, 1997 Series
B with an outstanding principal amount of $64.4 million; to provide funds ($30.0 million) for improvements to the
Medical Center Campus; deposit funds into the debt service reserve fund; and pay certain costs of issuance incurred
in connection with this refunding. The refunding resulted in a redemption premium of $639.4 thousand for the 1997
Series B lease revenue bonds and a net premium of $6.9 million for the 2012 Series A and Taxable Series B. The
reacquisition price exceeded the net carry amount of the old debt by $26.6 million. This amount is being netted against
the new debt and amortized over the new debt’s life. The transaction resulted in an economic gain of $8.0 million and
a reduction of $7.1 million in future debt service payments.
In June 2014, CORAL issued $11.0 million in lease revenue bonds (2014 A Court Facilities Project) to provide funds
mainly to refund the 2003 A Historic Courthouse Projects, 2003 B Capital Facilities Project Refunding, and 2003
Bankruptcy Court Project (a County bond) with a total outstanding principal amount of $20.0 million; and to pay
certain costs of issuance incurred in connection with this refunding. The refunding resulted in a premium of $756.0
thousand for the 2014 A and B Court Facilities Project. The reacquisition price exceeded the net carry amount of the
old debt by $1.5 million. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the new debt life. The
transaction resulted in an economic gain of $4.2 million and a reduction of $3.3 million in future debt service
payments.
In October 2016, the Infrastructure Finance Authority issued $36.7 million in lease revenue bonds (2016 Series A) for
the purpose of refunding the outstanding Riverside County Palm Desert Financing Authority Lease Revenue Bonds
(County Facilities Projects) 2008 Series A, with a total outstanding principal amount of $40.4 million, to finance the
acquisition, construction and installation of certain capital improvements to be owned and operated by the County,
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and to pay costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the bonds. The refunding resulted in an unamortized bond
premium of $5.2 million, loss on refunding of $3.8 million, and a net carry amount of $41.3 million. The reacquisition
price exceeded the net carry amount of the old debt by $3.8 million. This amount is being netted against the new debt
and amortized over the new debt life. The transaction resulted in an economic loss of $451 thousand and an increase
of $273 thousand in future debt service payments.
In December 2017, the Infrastructure Financing Authority issued $47.0 million in lease revenue refunding bonds,
2017 Series A. The 2017 Series bond is being issued for the purpose of refunding the outstanding Riverside
Community Properties Development, Inc. Lease Revenue Bonds, 2013 (Riverside County Law Building Project) and
pay the costs incurred in connections with the issuance of the bonds. The reacquisition price exceeded the net carry
amount of the old debt by $3.8 million. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the new
debt life. The transaction resulted in an economic gain of $8.3 million and a decrease of $4.4 million in future debt
service payments.
In December 2017, the Infrastructure Financing Authority also issued 2017 Series B & C lease revenue bonds (County
of Riverside Capital Projects) for $11.6 million and 10.6 million respectively. The 2017 Series B lease revenue bonds
were issued to refund the outstanding Southwest Communities Financing Authority 2008 Lease Revenue Bonds Series
A with a principal balance outstanding of $13.2 million. The 2017 Series C lease revenue bonds were issued to provide
funds to finance the acquisition and construction of certain capital improvements to be owned and operated by the
County. The reacquisition price exceeded the net carry amount of the old debt by $2.0 million. This amount is being
netted against the new debt and amortized over the new debt life. The transaction resulted in an economic gain of
$11.9 million and a decrease of $7.4 million in future debt service payments.
In May 2019, the Inland Empire Tobacco Securitization Authority (the Authority) issued $100.0 million of tobacco
settlement asset-backed refunding bonds, Series 2019 Turbo Current Interest Bonds. The proceeds of Series 2019
Turbo Current Interest Bonds along with other available funds under the Authority, were deposited into an escrow
account to refund and defease the outstanding 2007 Series A Turbo Current Interest Bonds and 2007 Series B Turbo
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds, to fund the Debt Service Reserve Account and Debt Service Account for the
Series 2019 Turbo Current Interest Bonds, and pay the cost of issuance incurred in connection with the issuance of
the Series 2019 Turbo Current Interest Bonds. The bonds have an interest rate of 3.68%. The reacquisition price
exceeded the net carry amount of the old debt by $3.8 million. This amount is being netted against the new debt and
amortized over the new debt life. The transaction resulted in an economic loss of $54.3 million and an increase of
$52.8 million in future debt service payments.
In September 2019, CORAL issued $12.9 million in taxable lease revenue refunding bonds, Taxable Lease Revenue
Refunding Bonds, 2019 Series A. The 2019 Series A Bonds are being issued for the purpose of refunding a portion
of the outstanding 2013 Series A Bonds (Public Defender/Probation Building and Riverside County Technology
Solutions Center Projects) and pay the cost incurred in connection with the issuance of the bonds. The transaction
resulted in an economic gain of $513.0 thousand.
Single Family and Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds
Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds have been issued to provide funds to purchase mortgage loans secured by
first trust deeds on newly constructed single-family residences. The purpose of this program is to provide low interest
rate home mortgage loans to persons who are unable to qualify for conventional mortgages at market rates. MultiFamily Mortgage Revenue Bonds are issued to provide permanent financing for apartment projects located in the
County to be partially occupied by persons of low or moderate income.
A total of $23.2 million of Mortgage Revenue Bonds have been issued and $16.3 million is outstanding as of June 30,
2020. These bonds do not constitute an indebtedness of the County. The bonds are payable solely from payments
made on and secured by a pledge of the acquired mortgage loans and certain funds and other monies held for the
benefit of the bondholders pursuant to the bond indentures. In the opinion of the County officials, these bonds are
not payable from any revenues or assets of the County, and neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing authority of
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Housing Bond Conduit Financing the County, the State, or any political subdivision thereof is obligated to the payment
of the principal or interest on the bonds. Accordingly, no liability has been recorded in the basic financial statements.
Special Assessment Bonds
Various special districts in the County reporting entity have issued special assessment bonds, totaling $83.3 million
at June 30, 2020, to provide financing or improvements benefiting certain property owners. Special assessment bonds
consist of Community Facilities District Bonds and Assessment District Bonds. The County, including its special
districts, is not liable for the payment of principal or interest on the bonds, which are obligations solely of the benefited
property owners. Certain debt service transactions relating to certain special assessment bonds are accounted for in
the agency funds.
The County is not obligated and does not expect to advance any available funds from the County general fund to the
Community Facilities Districts or the Assessment Districts for any current or future delinquent debt service
obligations. The County Special Districts continue to use all means available to bring current any delinquent special
assessment taxes, including workouts, settlement agreements, and foreclosure actions when necessary.
State Appellate Court Financing
In November 1997, the Public Financing Authority of the County issued $13.5 million of Lease Revenue Bonds for
the State of California Court of Appeal Fourth Appellate District, Division Two Project. The State of California
executed a lease coincident with the term of the financing and those lease payments are the sole security for the
financing. The State is the ultimate obligor under the terms of the financing and neither the County nor the Public
Financing Authority will have any ongoing payment obligation. The State has committed to indemnify the County in
the lease.
Interest Rate Swap
Objective of the Interest Rate Swap: As a means to lower financing costs and to reduce the risks to CORAL associated
with the fluctuation in market interest rates, CORAL entered into an amended and restated interest rate swap in
connection with the Southwest Justice Center Series 2008 Series A Leasehold Revenue Bonds in the notional
amount of $76.3 million. The intention of the swap was to effectively change the variable interest rate on the bonds to
a synthetic fixed-rate of 5.2%.
Terms: The bonds and the related swap agreement mature on November 1, 2032, and the swap’s notional amount of
$76.3 million approximately matches a portion of $78.9 million variable-rate bonds. The swap was effective at the
same time the bonds were issued on May 24, 2000, and was amended and restated as of December 10, 2008. The
interest rate swap agreement was novated in January 2012 to substitute Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. as the new
counterparty. The notional value of the swap and the principal amount of the associated debt decline starting in fiscal
year 2014-15. Under the amended and restated swap agreement, CORAL pays Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. a fixed
payment rate of 5.2%.
CORAL receives an interest rate equal to an amount not to exceed the maximum interest rate payable on the bonds,
expressed as a decimal, equal to 64.0% of the monthly London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) in the relevant
calculation period. Conversely, the bonds’ variable-rate coupons have historically been similar to the Bond Market
Association Municipal Swap Index (BMA). Under GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Derivative Instruments, the interest rate swap contract qualifies as a derivative financial instrument and a cash flow
hedging. CORAL’s net cash outflow or payment under the interest rate swap contract was $234.3 thousand for the
year ended June 30, 2020.
Fair Value: As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the swap had a negative fair value of $21.3 million and $18.6 million,
respectively, a decrease in fair value of $2.7 million occurred during the fiscal year 2019-20. The fair value was
recorded in the CORAL’s statement of net position as interest rate swap liability and deferred outflows of resources
in the assets section. Because the coupons on the Southwest Justice Center Series 2008 A Leasehold Revenue
Refunding Bonds adjust to changing interest rates, the bonds do not have a corresponding fair value increase. The
fair value was the quoted market price from Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. at June 30, 2020.
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Credit Risks: The swap counterparty was rated Aa3 by Moody’s and AA- by Standard & Poor’s and Fitch as of
February 2013. The swap agreement specifies that if the long-term senior unsecured debt rating of Wells Fargo, N.A.
is withdrawn, suspended or falls below BBB (Standard & Poor’s) or Baa2 (Moody’s), a collateral agreement will be
executed within 30 days or the fair value of the swap will be fully collateralized by the counterparty.
Basis Risks: The swap exposes CORAL to basis risk should the relationship between LIBOR and BMA converge,
changing the synthetic rate on the bonds. If a change occurs that results in the rates moving to convergence, the
expected cost savings may not be realized. As of June 30, 2020, CORAL’s rate was 64.0% of LIBOR, or 0.1%,
whereas BMA or the reset rate on bonds was 0.1%. The synthetic rate on the bonds at June 30, 2020 was 5.2%.
Termination Risks: CORAL always has the right to terminate the swap. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. is limited in so far
as both CORAL and the insurer are not performing. The swap may be terminated by CORAL if Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A.’s credit quality rating falls below A- as issued by Standard & Poor’s or A3 by Moody’s. Additionally, the swap
may be terminated by Wells Fargo, N.A. if CORAL’s credit quality rating falls below BBB+ as issued by Standard &
Poor’s or Baa1 as issued by Moody’s or if the bonds credit quality ratings fall below BBB+ as issued by Standard &
Poor’s or Baa1 as issued by Moody’s. If the swap is terminated, the variable rate bonds would no longer carry synthetic
interest rates. Also, if at the time of termination the swap had a negative fair value, CORAL would be liable to Wells
Fargo Bank, N.A. for a payment equal to the swaps’ fair value.
Changes in Long-term Liabilities
Swap Payment and Associated Debt: Using rates as of June 30, 2020, debt service requirements of the variable-rate
debt and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same for their term, were as follows (In
thousands):
Variable Rate Bonds
Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, 2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026-2030
2031-2033

Principal
$

$

3,410
3,620
3,825
4,035
4,135
20,270
6,100
45,395

Interest
$

$

865
814
760
703
644
2,215
382
6,383

Net Swap
Payments
$

$

2,231
2,100
1,961
1,814
1,662
5,714
981
16,463

Total
Interest

$

3,096
2,914
2,721
2,517
2,306
7,929
1,363
22,846

As rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary.
Disclosure of Pledged Revenues
Inland Empire Tobacco Securitization Authority, a blended component unit of the County, issued $252.7 million of
tobacco asset-backed bonds. The bonds are solely secured by pledging a portion of County Tobacco Assets made
payable to the County pursuant to agreements with the State and other parties. The County Tobacco Assets are tobacco
settlement revenues required to be paid to the State of California under the Master Settlement Agreement. The
Agreement was entered into by participating cigarette manufacturers, 46 states, including California, and six other
U.S. jurisdictions, in November 1998 in settlement of certain cigarette smoking-related litigation. The portion of
revenues that will be used to pay the debt service are the County Tobacco Assets to the extent consisting of or relating
to amounts due to the County after the first $10.0 million has been paid to the County in each year beginning on
January 1, 2008 and ending on December 31, 2020. Beginning on January 1, 2021 and ending on December 31, 2026
the portion of revenues that will be used to pay the debt service are the County Tobacco Assets to the extent consisting
of or relating to amounts due to the County after the first $11.5 million has been paid to the County in each year.
Finally, the County Tobacco Assets to the extent consisting of or relating to amounts due to the County from and after
January 1, 2027, and the County Tobacco Assets to the extent consisting of or relating to the applicable percentage of
a lump sum payment of 10.8% to the County and 85.9% to the Inland Empire Tobacco Securitization Authority for
calendar year 2019. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, $21.5 million was received by the Inland Empire
Tobacco Securitization Authority; $10.0 million, or 46.4 %, was distributed to the County per the above agreement,
leaving $11.5 million, or 53.6 %, of the specific tobacco settlement revenues available to be pledged (see page 173).
The County is under no obligation to make payments of the principal or accreted value or redemption premiums, if
any, or interest on the Series 2007 bonds in the event that revenues are insufficient for the payment thereof.
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Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position, and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, the
County recognized deferred outflows of resources in the government-wide financial statements. These items are a
consumption of net position or fund balance by the County that is applicable to a future reporting period. Previous
financial reporting standards do not include guidance for reporting those financial statement elements, which are
distinct from assets and liabilities. The County has three items that are reportable on the government-wide statement
of net position: the first item relates to outflows from changes in the net pension liability (Notes 20 and 21), the second
item relates to changes in the OPEB liability (Note 22) and the third item relates to the interest rate swap (Note 14)
that have met all requirements other than timing. Deferred outflows of resources that are reported in the proprietary
funds are included in the government-wide statement of net position.
Deferred outflows of resources balances for the year ended June 30, 2020 were as follows (In thousands):
Balance
June 30, 2020
Government-wide deferred outflows of resources:
Governmental activities:
Interest rate swap
OPEB
Pension
Total governmental activities
Business-type activities:
OPEB
Pension
Total business-type activities
Total government-wide deferred outflows of resources
Discretely presented component unit
deferred outflows of resources:
Pension
Total discretely presented component unit
deferred outflows of resources
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$

21,328
48,780
693,898
764,006

$

9,715
99,707
109,422
873,428

$

1,311

$

1,311
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Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position, and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, the
County recognized deferred inflows of resources in the government-wide and governmental fund financial statements.
These items are an acquisition of net position or fund balance by the County that is applicable to a future reporting
period. Previous financial reporting standards do not include guidance for reporting those financial statement
elements, which are distinct from assets and liabilities.
The largest portions of the County’s deferred inflows of resources are pensions, Senate Bill (SB) 90 and Teeter tax
loss reserve. Pensions are related to GASB Statement No. 68, which can be found in Notes 20 and 21. SB90 is
California SB90 of 1972, which established a requirement that the State of California reimburse local government
agencies for the costs of new programs or increased levels of service on programs mandated by the State. Teeter tax
loss reserve pursuant to California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 4703 was established as a tax loss reserve
fund for covering losses that may occur in the amount of tax liens as a result of special sales of tax defaulted property.
Deferred inflows of resources balances for the year ended June 30, 2020 were as follows (In thousands):
Balance
June 30, 2020
Government-wide deferred inflows of resources:
Governmental activities:
Teeter tax loss reserve
OPEB
Pension
Total governmental activities
Business-type activities:
Service concession arrangement
OPEB
Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids (HOPWA) grant
Pension
Total business-type activities
Total government-wide deferred inflows of resources
Governmental funds deferred inflows of resources:
General Fund:
SB 90
Teeter tax loss reserve
Property tax
Miscellaneous unavailable revenue
Total general fund
Flood Control Special Revenue Fund:
Property tax
Special assessments
Total flood control special revenue fund
Other Governmental Funds:
Property tax
Total other governmental funds
Total governmental funds deferred inflows of resources
Discretely presented component unit
deferred inflows of resources:
Pension
Total discretely presented component unit
deferred inflows of resources
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$

$

$

27,487
403
97,045
124,935
5,356
53
587
15,334
21,330
146,265

24,174
27,487
5,899
4,058
61,618
1,372
90
1,462

$

6
6
63,086

$

970

$

970
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Fund balances are presented in the following categories: nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned. (See
Note 1 for a description of each category.) A detailed schedule of fund balances as of June 30, 2020 is as follows (In thousands):
Major Funds

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Inventory
Prepaid items
Imprest cash
Permanent fund
Total nonspendable
Restricted
Aging
Air quality planning
Airport
Auto theft interdiction
CAP local initiative program
CARES Act
Construction & capital projects
Court services
Debt services
District attorney
Domestic violence
Emergency medical services
Emergency preparedness
Environmental health
Public ways and facilities
Fire protection
Geographical info system
Hazmat
Humane services
Landscape maintenance
Libraries
Mental health
Modernization
Other purposes
Parks and recreation
Public assistance
Public health
Public protection
Roads
Sheriff patrol
Teeter tax losses
Total restricted

General Fund

Transportation

Flood Control

CARES Act
Coronavirus
Relief

$

$

$

$

2,075
62
329
2,466
105
1,272
3,086
11,197
2,070
14,854
2,599
7,296
381
1,495
134
14,227
9,511
16,101
4,666
2,079
4,637
10,317
6,684
112,711

1,244
1
1,245
4,091
85,312
89,403

Note: Encumbrances - see Note 23 – Contingencies and Commitments
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1
1
273,549
273,549

1,774
1,774

Total Major
Governmental
Funds

Pension
Obligation

$

5,057
5,057

$

3,319
62
331
3,712
105
1,272
1,774
3,086
11,197
7,127
14,854
2,599
7,296
381
273,549
1,495
134
4,091
14,227
9,511
16,101
4,666
2,079
4,637
85,312
10,317
6,684
482,494
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Nonmajor Funds

$

5,007
49
5,056
355
917
685
2,059
1,403
8,857
2,116
29,328
25,096
4,718
35,257
7,400
792
609
11,889
131,481

Capital
Projects
Funds

Debt
Service
Funds

Special
Revenue
Funds

$

26,221
26,221

$

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Permanent
Fund

-

$

1,017
1,017

123,732
1,667
13,693
12,092
151,184

-
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$

5,007
49
1,017
6,073
355
917
685
2,059
123,732
27,888
1,403
13,693
8,857
2,116
29,328
25,096
16,810
35,257
7,400
792
609
11,889
308,886

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

3,319
5,069
380
1,017
9,785
355
1,022
685
1,272
2,059
1,774
126,818
11,197
35,015
14,854
2,599
7,296
1,403
381
287,242
8,857
2,116
1,495
134
33,419
25,096
14,227
9,511
16,101
16,810
39,923
9,479
5,429
85,921
22,206
6,684
791,380

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Inventory
Prepaid items
Imprest cash
Permanent fund
Total nonspendable
Restricted
Aging
Air quality planning
Airport
Auto theft interdiction
CAP local initiative program
CARES Act
Construction & capital projects
Court services
Debt services
District attorney
Domes tic violence
Emergency medical s ervices
Emergency preparedness
Environmental health
Public ways and facilities
Fire protection
Geographical info system
Hazmat
Humane services
Landscape maintenance
Libraries
Mental health
Modernization
Other purposes
Parks and recreation
Public assistance
Public health
Public protection
Roads
Sheriff patrol
Teeter tax losses
Total restricted

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 16 – FUND BALANCES (Continued)
Major Funds

Fund balances:
Committed
Code enforcement
Construction & capital projects
EDA special projects
Environmental programs
Legal services
Other purposes
Parks
Sheriff correction
Solar program
Youth protection
Total committed

General Fund

Transportation

Flood Control

CARES Act
Coronavirus
Relief

$

$

$

$

Assigned
Airports
Capital improvement projects
Construction & capital projects
Debt service
Equipment
Other purposes
Probation
Professional services
Public health
Public protection
Roads
Sheriff correction
Small business assistance grant program
Total assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances

$

1,260
300
613
12,331
340
14,844

4,236
351
4,587

-

-

Total Major
Governmental
Funds

Pension
Obligation
$

-

$

4,236
1,611
300
613
12,331
340
19,431

313
84
2,415
304
229
1,647
8,710
13,702

7,326
8,536
15,862

-

-

7,930
7,930

313
7,930
7,326
84
2,415
304
229
1,647
8,536
8,710
37,494

257,959

-

-

-

-

257,959

401,682

$

111,097

Note: Encumbrances - see Note 23 – Contingencies and Commitments
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$

273,550

$

1,774

$

12,987

$

801,090
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NOTE 16 – FUND BALANCES (Continued)
Nonmajor Funds
Special
Revenue
Funds
$

$

Debt
Service
Funds

190
128
5,433
1,112
6,863

$

Capital
Projects
Funds
-

$

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Permanent
Fund

9,358
9,358

$

-

$

9,358
190
128
5,433
1,112
16,221

Total
Governmental
Funds
$

4,236
9,358
190
1,611
300
741
5,433
12,331
1,112
340
35,652

Fund balances:
Committed
Code enforcement
Construction & capital projects
EDA special projects
Environmental programs
Legal services
Other purposes
Parks
Sheriff correction
Solar program
Youth protection
Total committed
Assigned
Airports
Capital improvement projects
Construction & capital projects
Debt service
Equipment
Other purposes
Probation
Professional services
Public health
Public protection
Roads
Sheriff correction
Small business assistance grant program
Total assigned

1,804
2,204
35,520
39,528

-

19,727
19,727

-

1,804
19,727
2,204
35,520
59,255

1,804
313
19,727
7,930
7,326
2,288
2,415
304
229
1,647
8,536
8,710
35,520
96,749

-

-

-

-

-

257,959

182,928

$

26,221

$

180,269

$

1,017

$

99

390,435

$

1,191,525

Unassigned
Total fund balances

(This Page Intentionally Left Blank)
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NOTE 17 – RISK MANAGEMENT
7KH&RXQW\LVVHOILQVXUHGIRUJHQHUDOOLDELOLW\PHGLFDOPDOSUDFWLFHDQGZRUNHUV FRPSHQVDWLRQFODLPV7KH&RXQW\
records estimated liabilities for general liability, medical malpractice, and workers' compensation claims filed or
HVWLPDWHG WR EH ILOHG IRU LQFLGHQWV WKDW KDYH RFFXUUHG (VWLPDWHG OLDELOLW\ DFFUXDOV LQFOXGH WKRVH LQFLGHQWV WKDW DUH
reported as well as an amount for those incidents that were incuUUHGEXWDUHQRWUHSRUWHG ,%15 DWILVFDO\HDUHQG
7KHIXQGLQJRIWKHVHHVWLPDWHVLVEDVHGRQDFWXDULDOH[SHULHQFHDQGSURMHFWLRQV7KH&RXQW\IXOO\VHOIinsures short
term GLVDELOLW\ DQG XQHPSOR\PHQW LQVXUDQFH /LIH LQVXUDQFH DQG ORQJterm disability pURJUDPV DUH IXOO\ LQVXUHG
Depending on the plan, group health, dental, and vision may be either selfLQVXUHGRUIXOO\LQVXUHG
7KH&RXQW\VXSSOHPHQWVLWVVHOIinsurance for general liability, medical malpractice, and workers' compensation with
catastropKLF H[FHVV LQVXUDQFH FRYHUDJH *HQHUDO OLDELOLW\ FODLPV DUH VHOIinsured to $5 million for each occurrence
with a $2 million corridor and the balance (to $25 million for each occurrence of with an excess of the underlying
policy of $25 million for a total of $50 million) is insured through Public Risk Innovation, Solutions, and Management
(PRISM) formerly known as &6$& ([FHVV ,QVXUDQFH $XWKRULW\ ³&6$& (,$´  D MRLQW SRZHUV DXWKRULW\ and
insurance risk sharing pool consisting of 55 counties in the State, as well as other nonFRXQW\SXEOLFHQWLWLHV0HGLFDO
malpractice is selfLQVXUHGIRUWKHILUVWPLOOLRQIRUHDFKFODLPZLWKDPLOOLRQOLPLWRQDFODLPVmade basis in
excess oIWKH&RXQW\¶VVHOIinsured retention, followed by a $20 million limit on an occurrence basis through PRISM,
IRUDWRWDOOLPLWRIPLOOLRQLQH[FHVVRIWKH&RXQW\¶VVHOILQVXUHGUHWHQWLRQ:RUNHUV¶FRPSHQVDWLRQFODLPVDUH
selfinsured to $2 million for each occurrence and the balance of statutory limits (unlimited) is insured through PRISM
LongWHUPGLVDELOLW\LQFRPHFODLPVDUHIXOO\LQVXUHGE\DQLQGHSHQGHQWFDUULHU
7KH&RXQW\ VSURSHUW\LQVXUDQFHSURJUDPSURYLGHVLQVXUDQFHFRYHUDge for allrisk subject to a $50,000 per occurrence
deductible; flood coverage is subject to a $100,000 per occurrence deductible within a 100year flood zone and a
$50,000 deductible outside of a 100\HDUIORRG]RQH,QRUGHUWRGLYHUVLI\ULVNSURSHUW\Hxposure amongst all members
ZLWKLQWKHSURJUDPDUHFDWHJRUL]HGLQWR³7RZHUV´EDVHGRQJHRJUDSK\DQGEXLOGLQJW\SH7KH&RXQW\SDUWLFLSDWHVLQ
four Towers, each of which provides $100 million in allULVNLQFOXGLQJ(4DQG)ORRGOLPLWV$PLOOLRQH[FHVV
all risk only sits above the Towers, providing a total of $600 million in all risk limits for Towers I9,,,:LWKUHVSHFW
WRHDUWKTXDNHFRYHUDJHHDFKRIWKHIRXU7RZHUVLQZKLFKWKH&RXQW\SDUWLFLSDWHVKDVDOLPLWRIPLOOLRQZLWKD
$365 million excess rooftop layer shared by Towers IVI that is triggered by the depletion of the initial limit for one
RU PRUH RI WKH 7RZHUV LQ D SROLF\ \HDU 7KH &RXQW\ KDV  PLOOLRQ LQ VKDUHG HDUWKTXDNH FRYHUDJH WKDW FRYHUV
scheduled locations and buildings equal to or greater than $1 million in value and lesser valued locations where such
FRYHUDJHLVUHTXLUHGE\FRQWUDFW(DUWKTXDNHFRYHUDJHLVVXEMHFWWRDGHGXFWLEOHHTXDOWRRIWRWDOYDOXHSHUXQLWSHU
RFFXUUHQFHVXEMHFWWRDPLQLPXP%RLOHUDQG0DFKLnery provides up to $100 million in limits, subject to a
GHGXFWLEOHSHUHYHQW3URSHUW\LQVXUDQFHOLPLWVLQHDFK7RZHUDUHVKDUHGZLWKRWKHUFRXQWLHVZLWKLQWKDW7RZHU
RQDSHUHYHQWEDVLV,IDFDWDVWURSKLFHYHQWRFFXUVDQGORVVHVH[FHHGWKHOLPLWVWKH&RXQW\ZRXOGEHUHVSRQVLEOHIRU
VXFKDPRXQWV
7KH DFWLYLWLHV UHODWHG WR VXFK SURJUDPV DUH DFFRXQWHG IRU LQ ,QWHUQDO 6HUYLFH )XQGV ,6)  $FFRUGLQJO\ HVWLPDWHG
liabilities for claims, including loss adjustment expenses, filed or to be filed, for incidents that have occurred through
June 30, 2020 DUHUHSRUWHGLQWKHVHIXQGV:KHUHFHUWDLQ,6)IXQGVKDYHDQDFFXPXODWHGGHILFLWRULQVXIILFLHQW reserves,
WKH &RXQW\ SURYLGHV IXQGLQJ WR UHGXFH WKH GHILFLW DQG LQFUHDVH WKH UHVHUYHV ,I WKH IXQGLQJ LV above the Board of
6XSHUYLVRUVDSSURYHGFRQILGHQFHOHYHODQDSSURSULDWHUHGXFWLRQLQIXQGLQJLQFOXGLQJDRQHtime holiday on
GHSDUWPHQW FKDUJHV PD\ EH JUDQWHG )RU ILVFDO year 201920, the Board approved to continue reduced funding at
slightly beORZWKHFRQILGHQFHOHYHOIRUWKHJHQHUDOOLDELOLW\,6)DQGIRUWKHZRUNHUV FRPSHQVDWLRQ,6) Funding
IRU WKH PHGLFDO PDOSUDFWLFH ,6) ZDV DW WKH  FRQILGHQFH OHYHO 5HYHQXHV IRU WKHVH LQWHUQDO VHUYLFH IXQGV are
SULPDULO\SURYLGHGE\RWKHU&RXQW\ departments and are intended to cover the selfinsured claim payments, insurance
SUHPLXPV DQG RSHUDWLQJ H[SHQVHV 7KH UHYHQXH LV QRW XVHG WR FRYHU FDWDVWURSKLF HYHQWV DQGRU RWKHU uninsured
OLDELOLWLHV&DVKDYDLODEOHLQWKHULVNPDQDJHPHQWDQGZRUNHUV compensation ISF at June 30, 2020, plus revenues to
be collected during fiscal year 202021, are $ PLOOLRQ7KHOLDELOLWLHVDUHGLVFRXQWHGDWIRU general liability
DQGPHGLFDOPDOSUDFWLFHDQGIRUZRUNHUV FRPSHQVDWLRQ
Auto & General
Liabilities
$
121,256

Medical
Malpractice
$
16,335

Workers'
&RPSHQVDWLRQ
$
122,519

Increase in provision for insured events of prior years

8,907

1,021

386

10,314

Incurred claims for current year

4,403

38,568

42,741

8QSDLGFODLPVEHJLQQLQJRI)<

&ODLPSD\PHQWV
8QSDLGFODLPVHQGRI)<

(230)

(28,237)
$

106,329

101

(1,525)
$

15,601

Total
$

(28,017)
$

133,456

260,110

(57,779)
$

255,386

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 18 – MEDI-CAL AND MEDICARE PROGRAMS
RUHS-MC provides services to patients covered by various reimbursement programs. The principal programs are
Medicare, the State of California Medi-Cal, the County Medically Indigent Services Program (MISP) and the MediCal Managed Care Assembly Bill (AB) 85 Expansion Program. Net patient service revenue is recorded at the
estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payers, and others for services rendered. In addition, net
patient service revenue includes a provision for doubtful accounts and estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with federal and state government programs and other third-party payers. Retroactive
adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future
periods as final settlements are determined.
Inpatient services rendered to Medi-Cal program beneficiaries are reimbursed at a per diem rate based upon
estimated certified public expenditures (CPEs) and outpatient services are reimbursed under a schedule of maximum
allowable reimbursement provided by the California Department of Health Care Services. Inpatient acute care
services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are reimbursed based upon pre-established rates for diagnosticrelated groups. Inpatient non-acute services, certain outpatient services, and defined capital and medical education
costs related to Medicare beneficiaries are paid based on a cost-reimbursement methodology subject to payment
caps and indexing formulas. RUHS-MC is reimbursed for cost reimbursable items at a tentative rate with final
settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports by RUHS-MC and audit thereof by the Medicare
fiscal intermediary. Normal estimation differences between final settlements and amounts accrued in previous years
are reflected in net patient services revenue. The fiscal intermediary has audited RUHS-MC’s Medicare cost reports
through June 30, 2018 and Medi-Cal cost reports through June 30, 2017. RUHS-MC has received notices of
program reimbursement (NPR), a written notice reflecting the intermediary's final determination of the total amount
of reimbursement due to the medical center for Medicare through June 30, 2017. For Medi-Cal Fee for Service,
RUHS-MC is settled through the California public hospital P-14 cost reports. Notice of final settlement has been
received through June 30, 2009.
California’s 1115 Waiver Renewal Medi-Cal 2020 was approved on December 30, 2015 by the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services. In connection with Medi-Cal 2020, the Global Payment Program (GPP)
establishes a statewide pool of funding for uninsured by combining Disproportionate Share Hospital Program (DSH)
and uncompensated care funding. GPP incentivizes Designated Public Hospitals (DPH) to deliver more costeffective and higher value care for indigent, uninsured individuals. GPP combines funding into global budgets for
DPHs to draw down by earning points for services provided to uninsured patients. For fiscal year ending June 30,
2020, RUHS-MC recognized $44.9 million of GPP revenue. The Public Hospital Redesign and Incentives in MediCal (PRIME) program is designed to build upon the foundational delivery system transformation work, expansion of
coverage, and increased access to coordinated primary care achieved through the prior California Section 1115
Bridge to Reform demonstration. PRIME is a pay-for-performance program that uses evidence-based quality
improvement methods to achieve performance targets and improve health outcomes for patients. RUHS-MC
recognized $24.0 million in PRIME for fiscal year ending June 30, 2020.
Redirection of 1991 State Health Realignment
Realignment was affected by California electing to implement a state-run Medicaid Expansion program through the
Affordable Care Act (ACA). The State anticipates that counties’ costs and responsibilities for the health care
services for the indigent population has decreased for much of this population who became eligible for coverage
through Medi-Cal or the Healthcare Exchange offering affordable coverage through Covered California. On June
27, 2013, Governor Brown signed into law AB 85 that provides a mechanism for the State to redirect State health
realignment funding to fund social service programs.
The redirected amount was determined according to an agreed to formula option for California’s twelve public
hospital system counties, thirty-four County Medical Services Program (CMSP) counties, and the remaining twelve
counties (Article 13 counties). The formula options were developed in consultation with the counties and California
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NOTE 18 – MEDI-CAL AND MEDICARE PROGRAMS (Continued)
Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) to ensure continued viability of the County safety net. For CMSP
counties, AB 85 outlines that 60% of health-realignment that would have otherwise been received will be redirected,
while the remaining two county groups had an option to either have 60% of health realignment redirected, or to use
a formula-based approach that takes into account a County’s cost and revenue experience, and redirect 80% (70% in
FY 13-14) of the savings realized by the County.
RUHS-MC is fully reserved for any estimated liabilities due back to the State for any State health realignment
overpayments. RUHS-MC recognized $4.9 million in revenue for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 from state
health realignment.

NOTE 19 – JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS
8QGHU 7LWOH , 6HFWLRQ  HW VHT  RI WKH *RYHUQPHQW &RGH WKH &RXQW\ KDV SDUWLFLSDWHG LQ MRLQWO\ JRYHUQHG
RUJDQL]DWLRQVZLWKYDULRXVHQWLWLHVIRUDYDULHW\RISXUSRVHV The board of directors for each of these organizations
is composed of one representDWLYH RI HDFK PHPEHU RUJDQL]DWLRQ 7KH&RXQW\ PDLQWDLQV QR PDMRULW\ LQIOXHQFH RU
EXGJHWDU\FRQWURORYHUWKHIROORZLQJHQWLWLHVDQG&RXQW\WUDQVDFWLRQVZLWKWKHVHMRLQWO\JRYHUQHGRUJDQL]DWLRQVDUH
QRWPDWHULDOWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV The following jointly governed organizations were not included as either
EOHQGHGRUGLVFUHWHO\SUHVHQWHGFRPSRQHQWXQLWVLQWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
$UHSUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKHMRLQWO\JRYHUQHGRUJDQL]DWLRQVRQZKLFKWKH&RXQW\ served at June 30, 2020 follows:
The &DOLIRUQLD6WDWH$VVRFLDWLRQRI&RXQWLHV &6$&) Excess Insurance Authority was formed in October 1979 and
KDV D FXUUHQW PHPEHUVKLS RI  &DOLIRUQLD FRXQWLHV The &6$& operates programs for excess workers’
compensation, two excess liability programs, two pURSHUW\ SURJUDPV DQG PHGLFDO PDOSUDFWLFH It also provides
support services for selected programs such as claims administration, risk management, loss prevention and training,
DQGVXEVLGLHVIRUDFWXDULDOVWXGLHVDQGFODLPVDXGLWV
&RDFKHOOD 9DOOH\ $VVRFiation of Governments (the Association) ZDV IRUPHG LQ 1RYHPEHU  &XUUHQWO\ WKH
Association includes the following members: the cities of %O\WKH &DWKHGUDO &LW\ &RDFKHOOD 'HVHUW +RW 6SULQJV
Indian Wells, Indio, La Quinta, Palm Desert, Palm Springs, and Rancho Mirage; WKHORFDOWULEHVRI$JXD&DOLHQWH
%DQG RI &DKXLOOD ,QGLDQV DQG WKH &DED]RQ %DQG RI 0LVVLRQ ,QGLDQV DQG 5LYHUVLGH &RXQW\ The purpose of the
Association is to conduct studies and projects designed to improve and coordinate the common governmental
responsibilities and services on an areaZLGHDQGUHJLRQDOEDVLV
:HVWHUQ5LYHUVLGH&RXQFLORI*RYHUQPHQWVZDVIRUPHGLQ1RYHPEHUZLWKWKHFLWLHVRI%DQQLQJ%HDXPRQW
&DOLPHVD &DQ\RQ /DNH &RURQD +HPHW /DNH (OVLQRUH 0RUHQR 9DOOH\ 0XUULHWD 1RUFR 3HUULV 5LYHUVLGH 6DQ
Jacinto, and Temecula for the purpose of serving as a forum for consideration, study, and recommendation on area
ZLGHDQGUHJLRQDOSUREOHPV
5LYHUVLGH&RXQW\+DELWDW&RQVHUYDWLRQ$JHQF\ 5&+&$ ZDVIRUPHGLQ-XO\ 7KH5&+&$LVD-RLQW3RZHUV
$JUHHPHQW $JHQF\ FRPSULVHG RI WKH FLWLHV RI &RURQD +HPHW /DNH (OVLQRUH 0RUHQR 9DOOH\ 0XUULHWD 3HUULV
Riverside, and 7HPHFXOD DQG WKH &RXQW\ RI 5LYHUVLGH IRU WKH SXUSRVH RI SODQQLQJ DFTXLULQJ DGPLQLVWHULQJ
operating, and maintaining land and facilities for ecosystem conservation and habitat reserves for the Stephen’s
.DQJDURR5DWDQGRWKHUHQGDQJHUHGVSHFLHVXQGHU$UWLFOH&KDSWHU'LYLVLRQ7LWOHRIWKH*RYHUQPHQW&RGH

103

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 19 – JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS (Continued)
5LYHUVLGH&RXQW\$EDQGRQHG9HKLFOH$EDWHPHQW$XWKRULW\ZDVIRUPHGLQ-XQHZLWKWKRVHFLWLHVZLWKLQWKH
&RXQW\WKDWKDYHHOHFWHGWR create and participate in the aXWKRULW\SXUVXDQWWR9HKLFOH&RGH6HFWLon 2 The
purpose of the aXWKRULW\LVWRLPSOHPHQWDSURJUDPDQGSODQIRUWKHDEDWHPHQWRIDEDQGRQHGYHKLFOHV
7KH 0DUFK -RLQW 3RZHUV &RPPLVVLRQ ZDV IRUPHG LQ $XJXVW  ZLWK WKH FLWLHV RI 0RUHQR 9DOOH\ 3HUULV DQG
5LYHUVLGHWRIRUPXODWHDQGLPSOHPHQWSODQVIRUWKHXVHDQGUHXVHRI0DUFK$LU)RUFH%DVH
The Salton Sea Authority was formed in August 1993 with ImpHULDO &RXQW\ ,PSHULDO ,UULJDWLRQ 'LVWULFW DQG
&RDFKHOOD 9DOOH\ :DWHU 'LVWULFW WR GLUHFW DQG FRRUGLQDWH DFWLRQV UHODWLQJ WR LPSURYHPHQW RI ZDWHU TXDOLW\
stabilization of water elevation, and to enhance recreational and economic development potential of the Salton Sea
DQGRWKHUEHQHILFLDOXVHV
&RDFKHOOD9DOOH\5HJLRQDO$LUSRUW$XWKRULW\ZDVIRUPHGLQ$SULOZLWKWKHFLWLHVRI&RDFKHOOD,QGLDQ:HOOV
Indio, La Quinta, and Palm Desert for the purpose of acting as a planning commission for the continued growth and
GHYHORSPHQWRI7KHUPDO$LUSRUWDQGWKHVXUURXQGLQJDUHD
,QODQG (PSLUH +HDOWK 3ODQZDV IRUPHG ZLWK WKH &RXQW\ RI6DQ %HUQDUGLQR LQ -XQH  WR EH WKHDGPLQLVWUDWLYH
body and governing board to form and develop a managed health care system for Medi&DO UHFLSLHQWV LQ WKH WZR
FRXQWLHVWKURXJKWKH/RFDO,QLWLDWLYH
3DOP6SULQJV9LVLWRUVDQG&RQYHQWLRQ%XUHDXwas formed in December 1995 with those member cities located in
WKH&RDFKHOOD9DOOH\DUHDRIWKH&RXQW\ The purpose of the authority is to encourage and promote all aspects of the
hospitality, convention, DQGWRXULVPLQGXVWU\LQWKH&RDFKHOOD9DOOH\
:HVWHUQ5LYHUVLGH&RXQW\5HJLRQDO&RQVHUYDWLRQ$XWKRULW\0XOWL6SHFLHV+DELWDW&RQVHUYDWLRQPlan was formed
in January 2004 with the responsibility of issuing the permits required to implement the MultiSpecies Habitat
&RQVHUYDWLRQ 3lan, which will ultimately create a 500,000DFUH UHVHUYH V\VWHP LQ WKH &RXQW\ The conservation
plan’s proposed reserve system protects habitat for 146 varieties of species
&RDFKHOOD9DOOH\&RQVHUYDWLRQ&RPPLVVLRQ &9&& ZDVIRUPHGLQ2FWREHU TKH&9&&LVD-RLQW3RZHUV
$JUHHPHQW$JHQF\FRPSULVHGRIWKHFLWLHVRI&RDFKHOOD&DWKHGUDO&LW\'HVHUW+RW6SULQJV,QGLDQ:HOOV,QGLR/D
Quinta, Palm Desert, Palm Springs, Rancho Mirage and 5LYHUVLGHDQGWKH&RDFKHOOD9DOOH\:DWHU'LVWULFWDVZHOO
as WKH,PSHULDO,UULJDWLRQ'LVWULFW 7KHSXUSRVHRIWKH&9&&LVWRLPSOHPHQWWKH&RDFKHOOD9DOOH\0XOWLSOH6SHFLHV
+DELWDW &RQVHUYDWLRQ 3ODQ &906+&3  7KH &906+&3’s goal is to enhance and maintain biological diversity
DQGHFRV\VWHPSURFHVVHVZKLOHDOORZLQJIXWXUHHFRQRPLFJURZWK
SouWKHUQ &DOLIRUQLD 5HJLRQDO $LUSRUW $XWKRULW\ 6&5$$  ZDV RULJLQDOO\ IRXQGHG LQ  E\ WKH MRLQW SRZHUV
authority to begin the process of regionalizing aviation It has been reactivated in an attempt to reduce projected
future passenger loads at Los Angeles International Airport (LAX) by spreading the growth in commercial air traffic
WR RWKHU UHJLRQDO DLUSRUWV 7KH 6RXWKHUQ &DOLIRUQLD $VVRFLDWLRQ RI *RYHUQPHQWV 6&$*  KDV DOVR FRRUGLQDWHG
dispersal planning of the significant new MAP (million air passengers) that would have to be absorbed at other
DLUSRUWVLI/$;¶VIXWXUH0$3LVUHGXFHG
&RDFKHOOD 9DOOH\ (QWHUSULVH =RQH $XWKRULW\ &9(=$  ZDV IRUPHG LQ September 2010 by the Joint Powers
Agreement FRPSULVHGRIWKH&RXQW\RI5LYHUVLGHWKH&LW\RI,QGLRDQGWKH&LW\RI&RDFKHOOD The purpose of the
authority is to manage, coordinate, market, and administer economic development programs and projects in the
HQWHUSULVH]RQHDUHDV
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General Information about the Pension Plans
Plan descriptions The County, Flood Control, Park District, and Waste Resources contract with the CalPERS to
provide retirement benefits to their employees. CalPERS is a common investment and administrative agent for
participating public entities within the State of California. State statutes, governed by the Public Employees’
Retirement Law (PERL), have established benefit provisions as well as other requirements. The County may select
from a variety of optional benefit provisions offered by CalPERS. Upon selecting the benefit provisions and entering
into a contractual agreement with CalPERS, the benefit provisions may be adopted through local ordinance. CalPERS
issues a comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) which details its plan assets, liabilities, and plan activity. The
County receives an annual actuarial valuation report which summarizes plan assets, liabilities, and employer rates for
its plans. Under GASB Statement No. 68, both the County (Miscellaneous and Safety) and Flood Control
(Miscellaneous) are agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans, while the Park District (Miscellaneous)
and Waste Resources (Miscellaneous) are cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plans due to their
pooling composite. Copies of the CalPERS CAFR may be obtained from: California Public Employees’ Retirement
System, 400 Q Street, P.O. Box 942701, Sacramento, CA 94229-2701.


Benefits providedCalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments (COLA),
and death benefits to plan members and plan beneficiaries. The County has three retirement Tiers through the
California Public Employee's Retirement System (CalPERS). Tier I - Applicable to employees hired prior to August
23, 2012. Formula is 3.0% at age 50 for County Safety plan employees and age 60 for other Miscellaneous plan
employees. Tier II - Applicable to employees hired on or after August 23, 2012 through December 31, 2012. Formula
is 2.0% at age 50 for County Safety plan employees and age 60 for other Miscellaneous plan employees. Tier III Applicable to new CalPERS members hired on or after January 1, 2013 as a result of Public Employees' Pension
Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA). New lower retirement benefit formulas, final compensation periods, and contribution
requirements were implemented. Formula is 2.7% at age 57 for County Safety plan employees and 2.0% at age 62
for other Miscellaneous plan employees. New members who were hired by Waste Resources on or after August 23,
2012 are applicable to the County Miscellaneous plan. Listed below is a table with the new retirement options and
provision changes by plan.

Plan

Employer Paid
Member
Contribution
(EPMC)

Earliest
Retirement Age

PEPRA
Compensation
Limits

Final
Compensation

Effective Date

Tier I
County Miscellaneous
County Safety
Flood Control Miscellaneous
Park District Miscellaneous
Waste Resources Miscellaneous

3.0% at 60
3.0% at 50
3.0% at 60
3.0% at 60
3.0% at 60

No*
No
No
No
No

50
50
50
50
50

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

12 months
12 months
12 months
12 months
12 months

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Tier II
County Miscellaneous
County Safety
Flood Control Miscellaneous
Park District Miscellaneous
Waste Resources Miscellaneous

2.0% at 60
2.0% at 50
2.0% at 60
2.0% at 60
N/A

No
No
No
No
N/A

50
50
50
50
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

36 months
36 months
36 months
36 months
N/A

8/23/2012
8/23/2012
8/23/2012
8/23/2012
N/A

Tier III (PEPRA)
County Miscellaneous
County Safety
Flood Control Miscellaneous
Park District Miscellaneous
Waste Resources Miscellaneous

2.0% at 62
2.7% at 57
2.0% at 62
2.0% at 62
2.0% at 62

No
No
No
No
No

52
50
52
52
52

36 months
36 months
36 months
36 months
36 months

1/1/2013
1/1/2013
1/1/2013
1/1/2013
1/1/2013

$
$
$
$
$

121,388
145,666
121,388
121,388
121,388

*Riverside County Deputy District Attorneys Association Employee Contributions to the Retirement System:
Classic Member Employees (as defined by the PEPRA) subject to the 3% at 60 Formula: Per Government Code Sec.
20692 the County has elected to pay the entire required member contribution (currently 8% of compensation earnable
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General Information about the Pension Plans (Continued)
of pensionable income) as Employer Paid Member Contributions (“EPMC”). Pursuant to Government Code Section
20636(c)(4) the County has agreed to report the value of the EPMC to PERS as compensation earnable.
Employees covered by benefit terms. At June 30, 2020, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

County
Miscellaneous

Waste
Flood Control Park District
Resources
County Safety Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits

11,438

2,739

263

92

113

Inactive employees entitled to but yet receiving
benefits

13,459

1,313

140

210

43

Active employees

16,817

3,296

220

110

17

41,714

7,348

623

412

Contributions. Active plan members in CalPERS may be required to contribute up to 8.0% (Miscellaneous
employees) and up to 9.0% (Safety employees) of their annual covered salary as specified in the governing
Memorandum of Understanding or as provided by state statute.
The employer contribution rate is established and may be amended by CalPERS. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used to establish the employer contribution rate are adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration.
The County, Flood Control, Park District, and Waste Resources are required to contribute the actuarially determined
annual required contributions necessary to fund the plans.
For fiscal year 2020, the employer and employee contribution rates were:
Waste
County
Flood Control Park District
Resources
Miscellaneous County Safety Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous
County contribution rates:
County Tier I
21.6%
37.4%
33.9%
15.2%
15.2%
County Tier II
21.6%
37.4%
33.9%
8.7%
N/A
County Tier III
21.6%
37.4%
33.9%
7.1%
7.1%
Plan Members contribution rates
County Tier I
8.0%
9.0%
8.0%
8.0%
8.0%
County Tier II
7.0%
9.0%
7.0%
7.0%
N/A
County Tier III
6.5%
11.8% *
6.3%
6.5%
6.5%
*During the term of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), the employee contributions pursuant to the cost-sharing
provision cannot exceed less than that which the employees are obligated under the MOU to contribute.

Net Pension Liability
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018.
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Actuarial assumptions. For the measurement period ending June 30, 2019 (the measurement date), the total pension
liability was determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2018 total pension liability. The June 30, 2018 total pension
liability was based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

By Plan
Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Inflation
Salary Increases

Investment Rate of Return
Mortality Rate Table for all Plans (1)
Post Retirement Benefit Increase

(1)

Waste
County
Flood Control Park District
Resources
Miscellaneous County Safety Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous
Entry Age

Entry Age

Entry Age

Entry Age

Entry Age

7.15%
7.15%
7.15%
7.15%
7.15%
2.50%
2.50%
2.50%
2.50%
2.50%
Varies by
Varies by
Varies by
Varies by
Varies by
Entry Age and Entry Age and Entry Age and Entry Age and Entry Age and
Services
Services
Services
Services
Services
7.15%
7.15%
7.15%
7.15%
7.15%
Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all Funds
The lessor of contract COLA or 2.5% until Purchasing Power Protection Allowance
floor on purchasing power applies, 2.50% thereafter

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The probabilities of mortality are based
on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015. Pre-retirement and Post-retirement
mortality rates include 15 years of projected mortality improvement using 90% of Scale MP-2016 published by
the Society of Actuaries. For more details on this table, please refer to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review
of Actuarial Assumptions report from December 2017 that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Change of assumptions. None in 2019. In 2018, the demographic assumptions and inflation rate were changed in
accordance with the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions December 2017. There were
no changes in the discount rate.
Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially
determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class.
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term market
return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all of the funds’ asset
classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term
(11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term,
the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the
rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single
equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.
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The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows:
Asset Class (1)
Global Equity
Fixed Income
Inflation Assets
Private Equity
Real Assets
Liquidity

Current Target
Allocation
50.0%
28.0%
0.0%
8.0%
13.0%
1.0%

Real Return Years Real Return Years
1 - 10 (2)
11+ (3)
4.80%
5.98%
1.00
2.62
0.77
1.81
6.30
7.23
3.75
4.93
0.00
(0.92)

(1) Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in Short-term
Investments; Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity Securities and Global Debt
Securities.
(2) An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period.
(3) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability for Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
The following table shows the changes in net pension liability recognized over the measurement period (In thousands).

Measurement Period June 30, 2019
Total pension liability
Service cost
Interest
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability - beginning (a)
Total pension liability - ending (c)
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expense
Other miscellaneous expense
Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning (b)
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (d)
Net pension liability - beginning (a) - (b)
Net pension liability - ending (c) - (d)

County
Miscellaneous
$

Flood Control
Miscellaneous

County Safety

Total

211,449 $
567,030
41,592
(321,474)
498,597
7,702,999
8,201,596 $

93,738 $
255,679
(3,563)
(145,095)
200,759
3,605,172
3,805,931 $

3,114 $
14,237
2,633
(10,190)
9,794
200,031
209,825 $

308,301
836,946
40,662
(476,759)
709,150
11,508,202
12,217,352

$

216,533 $
87,918
377,088
(321,474)
(4,088)
220
356,197
5,496,528
5,852,725 $

104,161 $
30,029
169,980
(145,095)
(1,845)
(200)
157,030
2,584,843
2,741,873 $

5,020 $
1,240
8,617
(10,190)
(94)
4,593
131,710
136,303 $

325,714
119,187
555,685
(476,759)
(6,027)
20
517,820
8,213,081
8,730,901

$

2,206,471
2,348,871

1,020,329
1,064,058

$

$
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$

68,321
73,522

$

3,295,121
3,486,451
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Changes in Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability for Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined
Benefit Pension Plans
The following table shows the proportionate share of the net pension liability over the measurement period.

Balance at 06/30/2018
Balance at 06/30/2019
Net changes during 2018-19

Park District Miscellaneous
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability
Net Position
Liability
( c ) = (a) - (b)
(b)
(a)
$
45,782 $
35,276 $
10,506
$
48,241 $
36,707 $
11,534
$
2,459 $
1,431 $
1,028

Waste Resources Miscellaneous
Increase (Decrease)
Net Pension
Plan
Total Pension
Liability
Fiduciary Net
Liability
Position (b) ( c ) = (a) - (b)
(a)
$
51,692 $
37,823 $
13,869
$
53,935 $
38,998 $
14,937
$
2,243 $
1,175 $
1,068

Total Net
Pension
Liability
$
24,375
$
26,471
$
2,096

The following table shows the total net pension liability for both Agent and Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer plans
by primary government and component unit.

County Miscellaneous
County Safety
Flood Control Miscellaneous
Park District Miscellaneous
Waste Resources Miscellaneous
Total:

Governmental
Activities
$
1,879,812
1,064,058
71,173
11,534
$
3,026,577

Business-type
Activities
$
463,994
2,349
14,937
$
481,280

Discretely
Presented
Component Unit
$
5,065
$
5,065

Total Net
Pension Liability
2,348,871
1,064,058
73,522
11,534
14,937
3,512,922

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the County’s net pension
liability, calculated using the discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.15
percent) than the current rate (In thousands):

Net Pension Liability By Plan
County Miscellaneous
County Safety
Flood Control Miscellaneous
Park District Miscellaneous
Waste Resources Miscellaneous
Total:

Discount Rate - 1%
(6.15%)
$
3,580,908
1,643,165
95,171
18,023
23,959
$
5,361,227

Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
Rate (7.15%)
(8.15%)
$
2,348,871 $
1,352,855
1,064,058
593,998
73,522
46,150
11,534
6,178
14,937
7,489
$
3,512,922 $
2,006,670

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension’s plan fiduciary net position is available
in the separately issued CalPERS financial report. The pension’s plan fiduciary net position may differ from the plan
assets reported in the actuarial valuation report due to several reasons. First, CalPERS must keep deficiency reserves,
fiduciary self-insurance, and Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) expense as assets. These amounts are excluded
for rate setting purposes in the actuarial valuation report. In addition, differences may result from early
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report closing and final reconciled reserves.


Subsequent events. There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results presented in this
disclosure.
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Recognition of gains and losses
Under GASB Statement No. 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and plan fiduciary net
position are recognized in pension expense systematically over time.
The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The remaining
amounts are categorized as deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and
are to be recognized in future pension expense.
The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss. The difference between projected and
actual earnings is five year straight-line amortization. All other amounts are straight-line amortization over the average
expected remaining service lives of all members that are provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired) as of the
beginning measurement period.
The expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) is calculated by dividing the total future service years by
the total number of plan participants (active, inactive, and retired).
The EARSL for the plan for the 2018-19 measurement period was obtained by dividing the total service years of the
sum of remaining service lifetimes of the active employees by the total number of participants (active, inactive, and
retired). Inactive employees and retirees have remaining service lifetimes equal to 0. The future service is based on
the members’ probability of decrementing due to an event other than receiving cash refund.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions
For the measurement period ending June 30, 2019, the Park District and Waste Resources reported a liability of $11.5
million and $14.9 million, respectively, for their proportionate share of net pension liability. The net pension liability
was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018. The proportion of the net pension liability was based on a
projection of long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the Park District’s and Waste Resources’
proportions were 0.28803 percent and 0.37300 percent, respectively, which was an increase of 0.00926 percent and
0.00499 percent, respectively, from their proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.
For the year-ended June 30, 2020, the County recognized pension expense of $738.0 million. Pension expense
represents the change in the net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual contributions and
the deferred recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial assumptions or method, and
plan benefits.
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At June 30, 2020, the deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are reported
from the following sources (In thousands):
Agent Multiple-Employer

Deferred Outflows of Resources By Plan:
Difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments - investment earnings
less than projected
Difference between expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions
Adjustment due to differences in proportions
Sub-total
Contributions subsequent to measurement date
recognized as deferred outflows of resources
(GASB Statement No. 71)
Total

County
Miscellaneous

$

-

$

Park District
Miscellaneous

Flood Control
Miscellaneous

County Safety

$

Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer

-

$

-

$

Waste Resources
Miscellaneous
-

$

-

Total
$

-

119,358
136,073
255,431

27,772
107,512
135,284

2,641
1,843
4,484

550
801
412
1,763

1,037
712
117
1,866

151,358
246,941
529
398,828

243,748

126,333

12,731

1,515

1,141

385,468

499,179

$

261,617

$

17,215

$

3,278

$

3,007

$

784,296

$385.5 million reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021.
Agent Multiple-Employer

Deferred Inflows of Resources By Plan:
Difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments - investment earnings
greater than projected
Difference between expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions
Adjustment due to differences in proportions
Difference in employer contributions and
proportionate share of contributions
Total

County
Miscellaneous
$

$

Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer

Flood Control
Miscellaneous

County Safety

Park District
Miscellaneous

Waste Resources
Miscellaneous

(29,655) $

(13,532) $

(759) $

(202) $

(261) $

(44,409)

(32,430)
-

(12,754)
(20,065)
-

(418)
(476)
-

(62)
(195)
-

(80)
(252)
(165)

(13,314)
(53,418)
(165)

-

-

-

(364)

-

(364)

(62,085) $

(46,351) $

(1,653) $

(823) $

(758) $

The follow table summarizes the total deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources by primary
government and component unit.

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total

Governmental
Activities
$
683,278
$
(95,366)

Discretely
Business-type
Presented
Component Unit
Activities
$
99,707 $
1,311 $
$
(15,334) $
(970) $

111

Total
784,296
(111,670)

(111,670)
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recognized in pension expense as follows (In thousands):
Year Ended
June 30
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

County
Miscellaneous
$
180,620
2,085
690
9,951
$
193,346

Park District
Waste Resources
Flood Control
County Safety
Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous
$
43,819 $
3,273 $
908 $
1,034 $
17,808
(843)
(107)
(136)
30,100
272
99
157
(2,530)
129
40
53
(264)
$
88,933 $
2,831 $
940 $
1,108 $

Total
229,654
18,807
31,318
7,643
(264)
287,158

Payable to the Pension Plan
At June 30, 2020, there is no outstanding amount of contributions payable to the pension plan required for the year
ended June 30, 2020.
NOTE 21 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
General Information about the Pension Plan
Plan Description. The County provides a Part-time and Temporary Employees’ Retirement Plan (the Plan) to provide
retirement benefits to eligible employees as a substitute for benefits under social security. The Plan is an IRS Section
401(a) defined benefit plan and agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan under GASB Statement No. 68.
This Plan is self-funded and self-administered. Effective July 20, 2010, the County Board of Supervisors appointed
U.S. Bank as the Plan’s investment consultant, investment manager and trustee. Contributions made to the Plan are
deposited with U.S. Bank, who maintains the responsibility of investing contributions in a diversified portfolio and
reported at fair value. No financial report has been issued separately for public view under the defined benefit pension
plan.


Benefits providedRetirement benefits are determined as 2.0 percent of the employee’s compensation and payable as
a single life annuity. The eligible retirement age is 65. Participants are immediately 100% vested in the Plan upon
enrollment. Benefits are payable for the life of the employee only. The normal retirement benefit is accrued to the
date of termination. A lump sum distribution is paid if the actuarial equivalent benefit is less than $5,000. Actuarial
Equivalence for this purpose is based on the greater of the factor produced under the UP1984 unisex mortality table
at 6% or the applicable mortality table and interest rate under 417(e).
Employees covered by benefit terms. For the measurement date June 30, 2020, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but yet receiving benefits
Active employees
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General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued)
Contributions. Participants in the Plan are required to contribute 3.75% of their compensation to the Plan. According
to the July 1, 2019 valuation, the County’s current required contribution rate is 4.02%. Overall, the Plan’s Net Pension
Liability increased from the prior valuation due to the net result of the following: 1) demographic experience was
different than expected, primarily due to fewer terminations than expected, which resulted in a liability loss; 2)
termination assumptions were updated to reflect the recent experience, resulting in an increase in liabilities; 3) lump
sum conversion rate was decreased from 5.00% to 4.00% to reflect the current bond market conditions, resulting in
an increase in liability; and 4) assets were lower than expected due to unfavorable investment return on plan assets
(4.66% actual compared to 6.0% assumed); 5) mortality assumptions were updated to reflect the recent public
mortality table Pub-2010 amount weighted for General employees, with generational future improvement scale MP2019, resulting in an increase in liabilities. The Plan’s current funded ratio is 76.6%. The Plan actuary calculates the
minimum recommended employer contribution rate through preparation of an actuarial valuation report and the
County determines the contribution rates. Administrative costs of the Plan are paid by the Trustee from Plan assets.
Net Pension Liability
The County’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial Cost Method
Asset Valuation Method
Actuarial Assumptions
Inflation
Salary Increases
Payroll Growth
Investment Rate of Return:

Entry Age
Market Value of
Assets
2.50%
2.75%
2.75%
6.00%

The mortality rates for active employees are based on PUB-2010 amount-weighted tables for general employees of
all income levels, projected using improvement scale MP-2019 from 2010.
The actuarial assumption used in the June 30, 2019 valuation was based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class
Cash
Domestic Equity
Developed International Equity
Aggregate Fixed Income

Target Allocation
1.77%
55.06%
11.97%
31.21%

Expected Nominal
Return
2.2%
5.9%
7.4%
1.5%
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3.0%
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Net Pension Liability (Continued)
Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.0 percent. The projected cash flow
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate
and the County contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution
rates and the employee rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments
to determine the total pension liability.
Changes in the Net Pension Liability (In thousands):

Governmental Activities
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension
Liability (a)
$
45,798

Measurement Period June 30, 2018
Changes of the year:
Service cost
Interest cost
Differences between expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income (loss)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expense
Net changes
Measurement Period June 30, 2019
$

Net Pension
Plan Fiduciary Net Liability/(Asset)
Position (b)
( c ) = (a) - (b)
$
41,576 $
4,222

1,082
2,747
2,732
2,985
(2,222)
7,324
53,122 $

832
1,701
1,939
(2,222)
(251)
1,999
43,575 $

Change of assumptions. The base mortality assumptions were updated to reflect the most recent public mortality table
from RP-2006 to PUB-2010 amount-weighted for general employees. The mortality improvement scale was updated
from MP-2018 to MP-2019.
Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net pension liability
of the County, calculated using the discount rate of 6.0 percent, as well as what the County’s net pension liability
would be if it were using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.0 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher
(7.0 percent) than the current rate (In thousands):

Net Pension Liability

1%
Decrease
(5.0%)
$
18,504

Current
Discount Rate
(6.0%)
$
9,547

1%
Increase
(7.0%)
$
2,546
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1,082
2,747
2,732
2,985
(832)
(1,701)
(1,939)
251
5,325
9,547
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Pension plan fiduciary net position
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2020
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Total assets

Pension Trust
$
45,120
237
45,357

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Restricted for pension benefits

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

-

$

45,357

ADDITIONS:
Contributions to pension trust:
Employer
Employee
Investment income
Total additions

$

867
1,667
1,740
4,274

DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits paid to participants
Administrative and other expenses
Total deductions
Net position, beginning of the year
Net position, end of the year

$

2,225
257
2,482
43,565
45,357

Subsequent Events
There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results presented in this disclosure.

Recognition of Gains and Losses
Under GASB Statement No. 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net position
are recognized in pension expense systematically over time.
The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The remaining
amounts are categorized as deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and
are to be recognized in future pension expense.
The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss. The difference between projected and
actual earnings is five year straight-line amortization. All other amounts are straight-line amortization over the average
expected remaining service lives of all members that are provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired) as of the
beginning measurement period.
The EARSL is calculated by dividing the total future service years by the total number of plan participants (active,
inactive, and retired).
The EARSL for the Plan for the 2018-19 measurement period is 8.78 years, which was obtained by dividing the total
service years of 81,759 (the sum of remaining service lifetimes of the active employees) by 9,312 (total number of
participants: active, inactive, and retired). Note that inactive employees and retirees have remaining service lifetimes
equal to 0. Also note that total future service is based on the members’ probability of decrementing due to an event
other than receiving cash refund.
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NOTE 21 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the County recognized pension expense of $1,685.0 thousand. At June 30, 2020,
the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the
following sources (In thousands):
Governmental Activities

Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension
plan investments
Sub-total
Contributions subsequent to measurement date recognized as
deferred outflows of resources (GASB Statement No. 71)
Total

Deferred Outflows of
Resources

Deferred Inflows of
Resources

$

$

5,928
3,891
-

(918)

9,819

(1,679)

801
$

(761)

10,620

$

(1,679)

$801.0 thousand reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as a deduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recognized in pension expense as follows (In thousands):

Deferred
Outflows/(Inflows) of
Year Ended June 30:
Resources
2021
$
1,415
2022
1,007
2023
1,341
2024
1,403
2025
943
2,031
dŚĞƌĞĂĨƚĞƌ
$
8,140
Payable to the Pension Plan
At June 30, 2020, there was no outstanding amount of contributions payable to the pension plan required for the year
ended June 30, 2020.
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NOTE 22 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
General Information about the OPEB Plan
Plan description. The County and its Special Districts, Flood Control, Park District, and Waste Resources, provide a
postemployment benefits plan to all full-time general and public safety employees. The postemployment benefit plan
is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan. A qualified Internal Revenue Code Section 115 Trust has
been established for the County and its Special Districts, with the exception of Waste Resources, with the California
Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) for the purpose of receiving employer contributions that will prefund
health and other postemployment costs for retirees and their beneficiaries. The CERBT administers each plan’s assets
and issues a financial report available for public review, which includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the trust fund. The CERBT report may be obtained from CalPERS Affiliate Programs
Services Division, CERBT (OPEB), P.O. Box 1494 Sacramento, CA 95812-1494. Waste Resources Postretirement
Benefits Plan is a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the Waste Resources Department and
no assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.
Benefits provided. The County provides retiree medical benefits for eligible retirees enrolled County sponsored plans.
Benefit provisions are established and amended through negotiations between the County and the respective unions.
Former employees eligible for CalPERS pension benefits but who are not eligible for retirement at termination of
employment are not eligible for retiree health benefits. The benefits are provided in the form of monthly County
contributions toward the retiree’s medical premium and contribution of $25 per month to the Riverside Sheriffs’
Association (RSA) Benefits Trust for RSA law enforcement retirees. Previously, the County allowed certain retirees
to receive coverage prior to age 65 by paying premiums that were developed by blending active and retiree costs,
which resulted in an implicit subsidy to retirees. The implicit subsidy has been discontinued since January 1, 2011.
In fiscal year 2019-20, management and SEIU employees are offered medical benefits through CalPERS.
Employees covered by benefit terms. For the measurement date June 30, 2019, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:

County
Miscellaneous
and Safety
2,282
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently
receiving benefit payemnts
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet
receiving benefit payments
Active employees
18,910
21,192

Waste
Flood Control Park District
Resources
Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous
36
8
23
-

-

-

212
248

107
115

12
35

Contributions. Contribution requirements of the plan members and the County are established and may be amended
through negotiations between the County and the respective bargaining units. The County contributes a portion of an
eligible retiree’s medical plan premium under a County’s sponsored health plan (either at retirement or during a
subsequent annual enrollment) for the retiree’s lifetime. The current monthly amount paid by the County ranges from
$25 - $256, depending on the retiree’s bargaining unit at retirement. Contributions are based on the employee’s
bargaining unit at the time of retirement, as shown on next page:
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NOTE 22 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued)

Bargaining Unit
Confidential
Law Enforcement Management Unit
Law Enforcement Executive Staff
LIUNA
Management (General)
Management (128)
District Attorneys
RSA Law Enforcement
RSA Public Safety
SEIU
Unrepresented

Monthly Contribution
County
Miscellaneous Flood Control Park District
Miscellaneous Miscellaneous
and Safety
$
256.00 $
256.00
N/A
$
139.00
N/A
N/A
$
256.00
N/A
N/A
$
25.00 $
25.00
N/A
$
256.00 $
256.00 $
256.00
N/A $
139.00
N/A
$
256.00
N/A
N/A
$
25.00
N/A
N/A
$
139.00
N/A
N/A
$
25.00 $
25.00 $
25.00
$
256.00
N/A
N/A

Waste
Resources
Miscellaneous
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
$
256.00
$
139.00
N/A
N/A
N/A
$
25.00
N/A

Net OPEB (Asset)/Liability
The net OPEB (asset)/liability of the County, Flood Control and Park District was measured as of June 30, 2019, and
the total OPEB (asset)/liability used to calculate the net OPEB (asset)/liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2019.
Actuarial assumptions. The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation
Salary Increases
Investment Rate of Return *

County
Miscellaneous Flood Control
and Safety
Miscellaneous
2.50%
2.50%
2.75%
2.75%
7.01%
6.22%

Park District
Miscellaneous
2.50%
2.75%
7.59%

*Net of Plan Investment Expenses, including inflation
County Miscellaneous and Safety Plan: The healthcare cost trend rate for the Pre Medicare Plan was 7.0 percent,
decreasing 0.3 percent per year to an ultimate rate of 4.5 percent for 2020 and later years. The healthcare cost trend
rate for the Post Medicare Plan was 8.2 percent, decreasing 0.5 percent per year to an ultimate rate of 4.5 percent for
2020 and later years.
Flood Control: The healthcare cost trend rate for the Pre Medicare Plan was 7.0 percent, decreasing 0.3 percent per
year to an ultimate rate of 4.5 percent for 2020 and later years. The healthcare cost trend rate for the Post Medicare
Plan was 8.2 percent, decreasing 0.5 percent per year to an ultimate rate of 4.5 percent for 2020 and later years.
Park District Miscellaneous: The healthcare cost trend rate for the Pre Medicare Plan was 7.0 percent, decreasing 0.3
percent per year to an ultimate rate of 4.5 percent for 2020 and later years. The healthcare cost trend rate for the Post
Medicare Plan was 8.2 percent, decreasing 0.5 percent per year to an ultimate rate of 4.5 percent for 2020 and later
years.
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Net OPEB (Asset)/Liability (Continued)
Mortality rates are based on the Pub-2010 headcount-weighted tables for general employees of all income levels, with
generational future improvements scale MP-2019.
The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of the 2017 CalPERS
Experience Study.
The actuarial valuation for Park District Miscellaneous Plan is every two years. The actuarial assumptions in the most
recent valuation as of July 1, 2019 were based on the results of an actuarial experience study period for the period of
July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019.
The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class
Global Equity
Fixed Income
Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities
Real Estate Investment Trust
Commodities
Total

County
Miscellaneous
and Safety
Target Allocation
Strategy 2
40.0%
43.0%
5.0%
8.0%
4.0%
100.0%

Flood Control
Miscellaneous
Target Allocation
Strategy 3
22.0%
49.0%
16.0%
8.0%
5.0%
100.0%

Park District
Miscellaneous
Target Allocation
Strategy 1
59.0%
25.0%
5.0%
8.0%
3.0%
100.0%

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return
5.98%
2.62%
1.46%
5.00%
2.87%

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.01 percent (County Miscellaneous
and Safety), 6.22 percent (Flood Control Miscellaneous), and 7.59 (Park District Miscellaneous). The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that County contributions will be made at rates equal to the
actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total OPEB liability.
Total OPEB Liability
The Waste Resources’ total OPEB liability of $1.5 million was measured as of June 30, 2019, and was determined by
the most recent actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. The actuarial valuation is every two years.
Actuarial assumptions and other inputs. The total OPEB liability in the actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise
specified:

119

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2020
NOTE 22 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued)
Total OPEB Liability (Continued)
Waste
Resources
Miscellaneous
Inflation
Salary Increases
Discount rate
Healthcare cost trend rates

Retiree's share of benefit-related
costs

2.50%
2.75%
3.51%
All benefits are assumed to decrease by 0.3% per year for the Pre
Medicare Plan and 0.5% per year for the Post Medicare Plan to an
ultimate rate of 4.5 percent for 2020 and later years.
Retirees pay the premiums in excess of the County contributions.

Since the plan is unfunded, the discount rates used in the valuation equal to 20-year municipal bond yields that are in
effect as of July 1, 2019.
Mortality rates are based on the Pub-2010 headcount-weighted tables for general employees of all income levels, with
generational future improvements using scale MP-2019.
The actuarial assumptions used in the most recent actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019 were based on the assumptions
developed in the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study.
Changes in the Net OPEB (Asset)/Liability for Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit OPEB Plan
Administered Through Trusts

Measurement Period June 30, 2019
Total OPEB liability
Service cost
Interest on the total OPEB liability
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning (a)
Total OPEB liability - ending (c)
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Administrative expense
Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning (b)
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (d)
Net OPEB (asset)/liability - beginning (a) - (b)
Net OPEB (asset)/liability - ending (c) - (d)

County
Miscellaneous and
Safety
$

1,434
4,581
-

Flood Control
Miscellaneous
$

2,528

$
$

29,676
(3,500)
34,719
68,378
103,097

$

5,500
2,821
(3,500)
(20)
4,801
40,104
44,905

$

28,274
58,192
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3
32
-

Park District
Miscellaneous
$

37

$
$

683
(39)
716
536
1,252

$

41
(39)
2
572
574

$

(36)
678

1
10
-

Total
$

(43)

$
$

118
(8)
78
140
218

$

21
(8)
13
348
361

$

(208)
(143)

1,438
4,623
2,522

$
$

30,477
(3,547)
35,513
69,054
104,567

$

5,500
2,883
(3,547)
(20)
4,816
41,024
45,840

$

28,030
58,727
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NOTE 22 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued)
Changes in the Net OPEB (Asset)/Liability for Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit OPEB Plan
Administered Through Trusts (Continued)
The assumptions were changed from the prior valuation as follow:
For County Miscellaneous and Safety Plan: 1) Discount rate was updated from 6.73% to 7.01% due to change in
CERBT expected return on assets, 2) Mortality rates were updated from the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study to the
Pub-2010 headcount-weighted tables for General employees of all income levels, 3) Mortality improvement was
updated from scale MP-2018 to scale MP-2019, 4) The claims table was updated to reflect most recent CalPERS
monthly premiums available for 2019, 5) Participation rates for CalPERS and RSA (immediate) health plan
participants were updated from 40% to 60% to reflect the more recent experience.
Flood Control Miscellaneous Plan: 1) Discount rate was updated from 6.12% to 6.22% due to change in CERBT
expected return on assets, 2) Mortality rates were updated from the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study to the Pub-2010
headcount-weighted tables for General employees of all income levels, 3) Mortality improvement was updated from
scale MP-2018 to scale MP-2019.
Park District Miscellaneous Plan: 1) Discount rate was updated from 7.28% to 7.59% due to change in CERBT
expected return on assets, 2) Demographic assumptions (i.e. termination rates, retirement rates, and disability rates)
were updated to reflect the assumptions developed in the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study, 3) Payroll growth rate
was updated from 3.00% to 2.75% to reflect the recent experience from the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study, 4)
Mortality rates were updated from the 2011 CalPERS Experience Study to the Pub-2010 headcount-weighted tables
for General employees of all income levels, 5) Mortality improvement was updated from scale MP-2017 to scale MP2019.
The introduction of CalPERS plans to certain retirees introduced a number of new assumptions to be included in the
valuation as follows:
Flood Control and Park District Miscellaneous Plans: 1) Premium table and age rating assumption to develop
anticipated CalPERS Costs, 2) Medical trends to reflect the current long term expected growth of medical benefits, 3)
Participation rates for CalPERS health plans participants were set based on recent County experience of other
CalPERS eligible retirees.
There were no new assumptions resulting from the introduction of CalPERS plans to certain retirees for the County
Miscellaneous and Safety Plan.
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability for Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit OPEB Plan Not
Administered Through Trusts

Measurement Period June 30, 2019
Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Changes in assumptions or other inputs
Benefit payments
Net changes
Total OPEB liability - beginning
Total OPEB liability - ending

Business-type
Activities
Waste Resources
Miscellaneous
$

2
21
64

$

835
(40)
882
598
1,480
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NOTE 22 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued)
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability for Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit OPEB Plan Not
Administered Through Trusts (Continued)
As of July 1, 2019, the discount rate was changed from 3.87 percent to 3.51 percent. All other information is based
on the census data, actuarial assumption, and plan provisions used in the most recent actuarial valuation as of July 1,
2019.
The following tables shows the Net OPEB Asset and Liability, and Total OPEB Liability by primary government (In
thousands).

Net OPEB (Asset)
Net OPEB Liability
Total OPEB Liability

Governmental
Activities
$
(143)
$
49,485
$
-

Business-type
Activities
$
$
9,385
$
1,480

Total
$
$
$

(143)
58,870
1,480

Sensitivity of the net OPEB (asset)/liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net OPEB
(asset)/liability, as well as what the net OPEB (asset)/liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate:
Net OPEB (Asset)/Liability

County Miscellaneous and Safety

1% Decrease
(6.01%)
$
73,554

Discount Rate
(7.01%)
$
58,192

1% Increase
(8.01%)
$
45,769

Flood Control Miscellaneous

Net OPEB (Asset)/Liability
1% Decrease
Discount Rate
1% Increase
(5.22%)
(6.22%)
(7.22%)
$
860 $
678 $
531

Park District Miscellaneous

Net OPEB (Asset)/Liability
1% Decrease
Discount Rate
1% Increase
(6.59%)
(7.59%)
(8.59%)
$
(112) $
(143) $
(168)

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the total OPEB liability,
as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate:

Waste Resources Miscellaneous

1% Decrease
(2.51%)
$
1,701

Total OPEB Liability
Discount Rate
1% Increase
(3.51%)
(4.51%)
$
1,480 $
1,302
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Sensitivity of the net OPEB (asset)/liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the
net OPEB (asset)/liability, as well as what the net OPEB (asset)/liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare
cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend
rates:

County Miscellaneous and Safety (Pre Medicare Plan)

Net OPEB (Asset)/Liability
Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease
1% Increase
Trend Rates
(6.0% decreasing
(8.0% decreasing
(7.0% decreasing
to 3.5%)
to 5.5%)
to 4.5%)
$
45,038 $
58,192 $
74,775

County Miscellaneous and Safety (Post Medicare Plan)

Net OPEB (Asset)/Liability
Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease
1% Increase
Trend Rates
(7.2% decreasing
(9.2% decreasing
(8.2% decreasing
to 3.5%)
to 5.5%)
to 4.5%)
$
45,038 $
58,192 $
74,775

Flood Control Miscellaneous (Pre Medicare Plan)

Net OPEB (Asset)/Liability
Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease
1% Increase
Trend Rates
(6.0% decreasing
(8.0% decreasing
(7.0% decreasing
to 3.5%)
to 5.5%)
to 4.5%)
$
526 $
678 $
869

Flood Control Miscellaneous (Post Medicare Plan)

Net OPEB (Asset)/Liability
Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease
1% Increase
Trend Rates
(7.2% decreasing
(9.2% decreasing
(8.2% decreasing
to 4.5%)
to 3.5%)
to 5.5%)
$
526 $
678 $
869

Park District Miscellaneous (Pre Medicare Plan)

Net OPEB (Asset)/Liability
Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease
1% Increase
Trend Rates
(7.0% decreasing
(6.0% decreasing
(8.0% decreasing
to 4.5%)
to 3.5%)
to 5.5%)
$
(169) $
(143) $
(109)

Park District Miscellaneous (Post Medicare Plan)

Net OPEB (Asset)/Liability
Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease
1% Increase
Trend Rates
(7.2% decreasing
(9.2% decreasing
(8.2% decreasing
to 4.5%)
to 3.5%)
to 5.5%)
$
(169) $
(143) $
(109)
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Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the total
OPEB liability, as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates
that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Waste Resources Miscellaneous (Pre Medicare Plan)

Total OPEB Liability
Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease
1% Increase
Trend Rates
(6.0% decreasing (7.0% decreasing
(8.0% decreasing
to 4.5%)
to 3.5%)
to 5.5%)
$
1,301 $
1,480 $
1,702

Waste Resources Miscellaneous (Post Medicare Plan)

Total OPEB Liability
Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease
1% Increase
Trend Rates
(7.2% decreasing (8.2% decreasing
(9.2% decreasing
to 4.5%)
to 3.5%)
to 5.5%)
$
1,301 $
1,480 $
1,702

OPEB plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued CERBT financial report.
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
For the year ended June 30, 2020, $7.3 million was recognized as OPEB expense. At June 30, 2020, the deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB were reported from the following sources.


Deferred Outflows of Resources By Plan:
Difference between expected and actual experience
Difference between expected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments
Changes of assumptions
Sub-total
Contributions subsequent to measurement date
recognized as deferred outflows of resources
(GASB Statement No. 71)
Total

County
Miscellaneous
and Safety
$
9,456

Flood Control
Miscellaneous
$
55

-

2

-

-

2

37,990
47,446

619
676

106
121

381
410

39,096
48,653

9,247

593

-

2

9,842

$

56,693

$

1,269

Park District
Waste Resources
Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous
$
15 $
29 $

$

121

$

412

$

Total
9,555

58,495

$9.8 million reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2021.
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Deferred Inflows of Resources By Plan:
Difference between expected and actual experience
Difference between expected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments
Changes of assumptions
Total

County
Miscellaneous
and Safety
$
-

Flood Control
Miscellaneous
$
-

(410)

-

$

(410) $

Park District
Waste Resources
Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous
$
(38) $
- $
(3)

(2)
(2) $

-

(2)
(43) $

(1)
(1) $

The table below summarizes the total deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources by primary
government (In thousands).

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Governmental
Business-type
Activities
Activities
$
48,780 $
9,715 $
$
(403) $
(53) $

Total
58,495
(456)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter
Total

County
Miscellaneous
and Safety
$
5,402
5,402
5,635
5,601
5,613
19,383
$
47,036

Flood Control
Miscellaneous
$
80
80
78
77
78
281
$
674

Park District
Miscellaneous
$
8
8
10
11
10
31
$
78

Waste Resources
Miscellaneous
$
409
$
409

Total
$

$

5,899
5,490
5,723
5,689
5,701
19,695
48,197

Payable to the OPEB Plan
At June 30, 2020, there was no outstanding amount of contributions payable to the OPEB plan required for the year
ended June 30, 2020.
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Lawsuits and Other Claims
7KH&RXQW\KDVEHHQQDPHGDVDGHIHQGDQWLQYDULRXVODZVXLWVDQGFODLPVDULVLQJLQWKHQRUPDOFRXUVHRIRSHUDWLRQV
In the aggregate, WKHVH FODLPV VHHN PRQHWDU\GDPDJHVLQ VLJQLILFDQW DPRXQWV To the extent the outcome of such
litigation has been determined to result in probaEOHILQDQFLDOORVVWRWKH&RXQW\such loss has been accrued in the
accompanying basic financial statePHQWV /LWLJDWLRQZKHUHORVVWRWKH&ounty is reasonably possible has not been
DFFUXHG In the opinion of management, the ultimate outcome of these claims will not materially affect the operations
RIWKH&RXQW\
Federal Grant Revenue
&RPSOLDQFHH[DPLQDWLRQVIRUWKH fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, indicated no items found of noncompliance with
FHGHUDO JUDQWV DQG UHJXODWLRQV The fiscal year 201920 Single Audit of federal awards report is expected to be
VXEPLWWHGWRWKH)HGHUDO$XGLW&OHDULQJhouse on or before March 31, 2021
Commitments
At June 30, 2020, WKH &RXQW\ KDG YDULRXV QRQcancelable contracts and constructioninprogress with outside
FRQWUDFWRUV These contracts were financed through either the general fund or capital projects fXQGV $million
will be payable upon future performance under thHFRQWUDFWV
Landfill Construction and Consulting Contracts
Waste Resources enters into various construction and consulting contracts to facilitate its landfill operations and
continues the process of LQVWDOOLQJODQGILOOOLQHUVDVQHHGHGDW%DGODQGVDQG/DPE&DQ\RQODQGILOOVLQDFFRUGDQFH
with state anGIHGHUDOODZVDQGUHJXODWLRQV Waste Resources does not anticipate a new area landfill expansion at the
/DPE&DQ\RQODQGILOOLQWKHQH[WILYH\HDUV but does plan to complete two expansion projects at Badlands landfill
which will increase refuse airspace and days of site life in the current burLDODUHD The northwestern berm construction
DWWKH%DGODQGVODQGILOOZLOOFRVWDSSUR[LPDWHO\PLOOLRQDQGWKHFRVWRIWKHacre liner expansion on the north
part of the site is now estimated at $4 PLOOLRQ Both Badlands landfill projects are expected to be completed in the
QH[WILYH\HDUV
Remediation Contingencies
*RYHUQPHQWDOActivities
Release of gasoline and diesel fuel has been reported at seven XQGHUJURXQGVWRUDJHWDQNV Orders have been issued
E\WKH&DOLIRUQLD5HJLRQDO:DWHU4XDOLW\&RQWURO%RDUG &5:4&% WRDVVHVVDQGFOHDQXS these sites by specific
GDWHV It has determined the remediation plan and monitoring action is UHTXLUHG In addition to groundwater
contamination, asbestos has EHHQIRXQGLQVL[IDFLOLWLHV As of June 30, 2020, the accrued remediation liability is $23
million The liability has been calculated using the expected cash flow WHFKQLTXH The liability is subject to change
RYHUWLPH &RVWPD\vary due to price fluctuations, changes in technology, results of environmental studies, changes
to statute or regulations and other factors that could UHVXOWLQUHYLVLRQVWRWKHVHHVWLPDWHV
Business-W\SH$FWLYLWLHV
The Waste Resources Department has established restricted cash funds to set aside for future remediation costs as they
DUH UHTXLUHG WR EH SHUIRUPHG Investments of $360 million are held for these purposes at June 30, 2020 and are
classified as accrued remediation in the stDWHPHQWVRIQHWSRVLWLRQ
The Waste Resources Department is aware of air/gas contamination at 17 landfills, 11 of which are closed, and
required to have corrective action plans Based on engineering studies, Waste Resources estimates the present value
of the total costs of corrective action for foreseeable water quality contaminant releases, and/or nonwater quality
corrective action measures, at $395 million as of June 30, 2020
,QDGGLWLRQWRWKHOLDELOLW\DPRXQWVFDOFXODWHGSHU&DO5HF\FOHUHJXODWLRQVWKDWDUHGHVLJQDWHGWRWKH(VFURZ)XQGVWKH
Waste Resources Department is also responsible for the corrective action costs related to 19 other landfill sites that
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Remediation Contingencies (Continued)
KDYHEHHQLQDFWLYHRUFORVHGVLQFHEHIRUH Liability for these sites fluctuates dependent on the needs of each site
and changes to or the implementation of laws and rHJXODWLRQV As of June 30, 2020, the postclosure liability is
estimated at $ PLOOLRQ
Encumbrances
The County uses “encumbrances” to control expenditure FRPPLWPHQWV IRU WKH \HDU Encumbrances represent
commitments related to executor contracts not yet performed and purchase RUGHUVQRW\HWILOOHG &RPPLWPHQWVIRU
such expenditure of monies are encumbered to reserve applicable appropriaWLRQV Depending on the source(s) of
funding, encumbrances are reported as part of restricted or assigned fund balance on the governmental funds balance
VKHHW As of June 30, 2020, the encumbrance balances for the governmental funds are reported as follows (In
thousands):
Restricted
Major Governmental Funds
General Fund:
Energy projects
 Facilities maintenance
 Fire protection
 General government
Health care programs
Human resources
Probation programs
Public protection
Purchasing projects
Sheriff correction
Sheriff court services
Sheriff patrol
Sheriff support
Transportation:
&RQVWUXFWLRQSURMHFWV
Equipment
Land surveying activities
Roads
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds:
&RPPXQLW\VHUYLFHV
Education
Parks projects
Pubic assistance
Public protection
Public ways and facilities
Recreation & cultural services
Small business assistance grant program
Capital Projects Funds:
Parks projects
Total Encumbrances

$








21



34


Committed

$

$

Total

75
296
1,443
23
229
281
2,416
274
9
4,057
342
3,915
343

$

75
296
1,443
23
229
281
2,416
295
9
4,057
342
3,949
343

122
673
1
299











122
673
1
299

8
111
18
99
7
64
51


















35,520

8
111
18
99
7
64
51
35,520



133
$















Assigned

1,641
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NOTE 24 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRANs)
On July 1, 2020WKH&RXQW\LVVXHGPLOOLRQLQ7D[DQG5HYHQXH$QWLFLSDWLRQ1RWHVLQWKHIRUPRID21
Maturity bond due June 30, 2021 The stated interest rate for the bond is set at 4SHU DQQXP ZLWK D\LHOG RI
 ,QDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DOLIRUQLDODZWKH75$1VERQGVDUHJHQHUDOREOLJDWLRQVRIWKH&RXQW\DQGDUHSD\DEOH
only out of the taxes, income, revenues, cash receipts, and other PRQLHV RI WKH &RXQW\ DWWULEXWDEOH WR ILVFDO \HDU
2021 DQGOHJDOO\DYDLODEOHIRUSD\PHQWWKHUHRI Proceeds for the bonds will be used for fiscal year 2021 general
fund expenditures, including current expenditures, capital expenditures, and the discharge of other obligations or
LQGHEWHGQHVVRIWKH&RXQW\
Riverside County Bonds and Certificates of Participation
In September 2020, )LWFKRQHRIWKHWKUHHPDMRUFUHGLWUDWLQJVKDVDVVLJQHGWKH&RXQW\¶VERQGVDQGFHUWLILFDWHVRI
participation ratings as follows:
x
x
x
x
x

5LYHUVLGH&RXQW\LPSOLHGJHQHUDOREOLJDWLRQ *2 ERQGUDWLQJDW $$ 
5LYHUVLGH&RXQW\SHQVLRQREOLJDWLRQERQGV 32%SeriHV$ DW $ 
5LYHUVLGH &RXQW\ $VVHW /HDVLQJ &RUSRUDWLRQ FHUWLILFDWHV RI SDUWLFLSDWLRQ 6HULHV  DQG OHDVH UHYHQXH
ERQGV /5%V 6HULHV$ DW $ 
5LYHUVLGH&RXQW\3XEOLF)LQDQFLQJ$XWKRULW\ /5%V  6HULHVDQG DW $ 
5LYHUVLGH&RXQW\WD[DQGUHYHQXHDQWLFLSDWLRQQRWHV 75$16 $7µ)¶

Fitch’s reasoning is summarized in the following paragraphs:
7KH&RXQW\¶VHFRQRP\LVODUJHGLYHUVHDQGZHOOsituated for longWHUPJURZWK It has affordable housing stock,
capaFLW\IRUDGGLWLRQDOGHYHORSPHQWSUR[LPLW\WRHPSOR\PHQWFHQWHUVLQFOXGLQJ6DQ%HUQDUGLQR2UDQJH&RXQW\
DQG/RV$QJHOHVDQGDORFDWLRQDORQJDPDMRUGLVWULEXWLRQURXWH 7KH&RXQW\LVH[SRVHGWRFRQVLGHUDEOHKRXVLQJ
market and tax base volatility as it was one of the worst – affected regions in the country during the economic
GRZQWXUQ However, both the housing market and assessed values have improved significantly over the past several
years and a large amount of state and federal revenue in the budget moderates the effect of this cyclicality on overall
UHYHQXHV
*URZWK LQ WRWDO JHQHUDO IXQG UHYHQXHV KDV EHHQ DERYH LQIODWLRQ EXW EHORZ WKDW RI WKH 86 (FRQRP\ DQG )LWFK
H[SHFWV WKDW WUHQG WR FRQWLQXH 6WDWH ODZ OLPLWV WKH &ounty’s independent ability to raise revenues as tax rate
LQFUHDVHV UHTXLUH YRWHU DSSURYDO The &ounty maintains very strong gapclosing capacity as evidenced by sound
UHVHUYHOHYHOVUHODWLYHWRVROLGVSHQGLQJIOH[LELOLW\DQGPRGHUDWHH[SHFWHGUHYHQXHYRODWLOLW\*LYHQRQO\PRGHUDWH
ability to raise revenues relative to expected volatility, the &ounty's ability to manage its expenditure growth and
maintain solid reserves is critical to maintaining its very strong financial resilience
The recent coronavirus outbreak and related government containment measures worldwide create an uncertain
JOREDOHQYLURQPHQWIRU86VWDWHDQGORFDOJRYHUQPHQWVDQGUHODWHGHQWLWLHVLQWKHQHDUWHUP:KLOHWKH&ounty of
Riverside’s most recently available fiscal and economic data may not fully reflect impairment, material changes in
revenues and expenditures are occurring across the country and are likely to worsen in the coming weeks and
PRQWKVDVHFRQRPLFDFWLYLW\VXIIHUVDQGSXEOLFKHDOWKVSHQGLQJLQFUHDVHV
Fitch considers liquidity to be the most significant and immediate risk to state and local government financial
RSHUDWLRQV SUHVHQWHG E\ WKH SDQGHPLF 7KH &ounty received $431 PLOOLRQ IRU &29,'19 expenses from the
&RURQDYLUXV$LG5HOLHIDQG(FRQRPLF6HFXULW\ &$5(6 $FWDQGHVWLPDWHGLWKDG78 million in general fund
cash as of June 30, 2020 and 0 ELOOLRQLQDYDLODEOHFDVKLQFOXGLQJERUURZDEOHUHVRXUFHVBy June 30, 2021, the
&ounty expects to have $216 PLOOLRQ LQ JHQHUDO IXQG FDVK DQG 0 billion in available liquidity, including
ERUURZDEOH UHVRXUFHV 7KLV LV HTXDO WR DERXW  GD\V VSHQGLQJ EDVHG RQ ILVFDO year  H[SHQGLWXUHV 7KHVH
borrowable resources provide sufficient liquidity for its nearWHUPRSHUDWLQJQHHGV
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Riverside County Bonds and Certificates of Participation (Continued)
The vast majority of the &ounty's discretionary revenues are derived from property taxes, which to date have
UHPDLQHGVWHDG\)RUILVFDOyear 2020, the &ounty's third quarter budget report estimated revenues below budget by
about $30 million, which included a roughly $10 million loss of discretionary revenue related to sales taxes,
ILQHVDQGSHQDOWLHVDQGGRFXPHQWDU\WUDQVIHUWD[HVDQGDSSUR[LPDWHO\PLOOLRQIURP3URSRVLWLRQ sales tax
UHYHQXHV DSSUR[LPDWLQJ D  UHYHQXH ORVV RI WKHVH VDOHV WD[HV  7R RIIVHW WKHVH UHYHQXH ORVVHV WKH &ounty
suspended training and travel and other discretionary spending for roughly $14 million in savings and used about
$45 million in reseUYHV7KH&ounty ended fiscal year 2020 with an estimated $284 million in unrestricted fund
balance, equal to about 9RIVSHQGLQJ
Given moderate reserve draws in fiscal year 2020 and 2021, it is expected that the &ounty will retain very strong gap
FORVLQJFDSDFLW\7KH&ounty ended fiscal year ZLWKDPLOOLRQVXUSOXV(DERXWRIILVFDOyear 2019
expenditures and transfers out), most of which was added to the availDEOHIXQGEDODQFHEULQJLQJLWVWRWDOWR
million, equal to almost 10% of fiscal year 2019 H[SHQGLWXUHV DQG WUDQVIHUV RXW 7KH &ounty's available fund
balance has been fairly steady over the last several years at about 8%  9% of general fund spending with the
largest surplus in fiscal year 
Fitch believes the &ounty has sufficient reserves and spending flexibility to withstand the potential revenue losses
through fiscal year  6KRXOG WKH UHYHQXH LPSDFW EH PDWHULDOO\ ODUJHU RU LI WKH &ounty is unable to offset the
revenue loss without reducing reserves substantially, there could be downward rating pressure There is no
indication at this time that property values have been affected by the coronavirus pandemic (home sale prices have
contLQXHGWRLQFUHDVH EXWWKDWUHPDLQVDULVNSDUWLFXODUO\LQ)LWFK VGRZQVLGHVFHQDULR

Teeter Obligation Notes, Series A
On October 21, 2020WKH&RXQW\LVVXHG996 million in 2020 7HHWHU2EOLJDWLRQ1RWHV6HULHV$ 7D[Exempt) to
refund a portion of the outstanding 2019 Teeter Obligation 1RWHV6HULHV$ and fund an advance of unpaid property
WD[HVIRUDJHQFLHVSDUWLFLSDWLQJLQWKH&RXQW\¶V7HHWHUSODQDQGWRSD\WKHFRVWRILVVXDQFHUHODWHGWRWKHQRWHV The
2020 1RWHVEHDUDQLQWHUHVWUDWHRI% for 2020 7HHWHU2EOLJDWLRQ1RWH6HULHs A and a maturity date of October
21, 2021ZKHQWKHH[LVWLQJ/HWWHURI&UHGLWZLOOH[SLUH
The Effects of the Economy on CalPERS
%DVHG RQ SDVW SHUIRUPDQFH RI WKH &DO3(56 IXQG &DO3(56 KDV HVWLPDWHG WKH &RXQW\¶V PLVFHOODQHRXV DQG VDIHW\
contribution rates for fiscal year 202021 will be % and UHVSHFWLYHO\ Fiscal year 202122 contribution
rates for miscellaneous and safety are estimated at % and UHVSHFWLYHO\ They will be accounted for in
fiscal year 202021 DQGIXWXUHEXGJHW\HDUV
COVID-19 Pandemic
2Q 0DUFK   WKH :RUOG +HDOWK 2UJDQL]DWLRQ GHFODUHG WKH VWUDLQ RI FRURQDYLUXV &29,'19) a global
SDQGHPLF DQG UHFRPPHQGHG FRQWDLQPHQW DQG PLWLJDWLRQ PHDVXUHV ZRUOGZLGH ,Q UHVSRQVH 7KH &RXQW\ RI
RiversiGH IROORZHG E\ WKH *RYHUQRU RI &DOLIRUQLD LVVXHG D 6KHOWHU D +RPH RUGHU HIIHFWLYH 0DUFK  
requiring nonHVVHQWLDO EXVLQHVV WR WHPSRUDULO\ FORVH WR WKH SXEOLF Measures taken to contain the virus have
significantly affected economic activity, which in turn will have implications on revenue sources and stock market
YRODWLOLW\$WWKHFXUUHQWWLPHPDQDJHPHQWLVXQDEOHWRTXDQWLI\WKHSRWHQWLDOHIIHFWVRIWKLVSDQGHPLFRQLWVIXWXUH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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